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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

DIRECTORS'REPORT 

To the Memben, 

Your Directors are pleased to present the 7� Annual Report of The Phosphate Company Limited, together 
with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

FINANCIAL ffiGHLIGHTS 
(₹in Lakhs)

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY2023-24 

Total Revenue from Opemtions 137,77 124,99 
EBITDA 876 759 
Finance Cost 301 342 
Depreciation 98 99 
Tax Provisions 131 116 
Profit After Tax (PAT) 346 202 
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) (18) (24)
Total Comprehensive Income 328 178

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONS 

The Company delivered an improved per:formance in FY 2024-25, aided by favourable and widespread 
rainfall across key agricultural regions. 
• Revenue & Profitability:

Gross turnover rose to ₹ 137,77 lakhs, reflecting a growth of oier 10% compared to the previous
year. EBITDA stood at ₹ 876 lakhs, up by more than 15% on year-on-year basis. Total
Comprehensive Income increased to ₹ 328 lakhs as against ₹ 178 lakhs in FY 2023-24.

• Production & Sales:
Production of Green Single Super Phosphate (SSP) fertiliser was at 73,727 MT, an increase of over 5%
on YoY basis. Sales ofSSP (powder and granulated combined) at 72,903 MT, recording a growth
of more than 4% compared with the previous year.

• Subsidy:
Fertiliser subsidy was disbursed@ ₹ 4,804 per MT during HI offY 2024-25, which was further
revised upward to₹ 5,121 per MT for H2 of FY 2024-25.

• New Products:
The Company successfully launched certain varieties of Specialty Nutrient and Crop Protection
Chemicals (SNPC) under the SAMADHAN brand. These products have been well received in the
agri­input market Additionally, the Company availed the opportunity to market Ammonium
Sulphate manufactured by FACT Ltd.

OUTLOOK 

The Government oflndia, under the Nutrient-Based Subsidy (NBS) Policy, has announced a subsidy of 
• ₹7,263 per MT for SSP fertiliser for HI of FY 2025-26. This sul:sidy is payable on fertiliser sales
made to farmers through Point-of-Sale (POS) machines.

Raw material availability remains a key challenge. Rock Phosphate the primary input is sourced from 
politically sensitive regions such as Egypt, Jordan, Syria, and Morocco. Continuing geopolitical tensions 
(including the Russia-Ukraine conflict, Israel-Iran hostilities, and Gaza crisis), together with security 
risks on maritime trade routes posed by Houthi rebels and Somali pirates, continue to impact supply chains 
and input pricing. 
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Looking ahead, the Company plans to: 
• Expand the SAMADHAN Brand by introducing additional varieties of Paddy and other seeds,

along with widening the SNPC po1tfolio launched last year.
• Leverage Govemment Approval to impo11 and market selected grade.s of bulk fe1tilise1-s under the

LAKSHMI Brand. enhancing product diversity.
• Strengthen Brand Equity and Distribution Network to capture incremental demand oppo,tunities

in the agri-input market.

Your Directors are confident that tbese initiative,s will enable sustainable growth and improved financial 
performance in the coming years. 

DIVIDEND 

To conserve resources for future growth, the Board has not recommended any dividend for the year. 

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVES 

No amount is proposed to be transferred to General Reserves. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

The Company has neither accepted nor holds any deposits under Section 73 of the Companies Act.2013 as 
on March 31, 2025. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company maintains a structured risk 
management framework. Risks across departments are periodically assessed, and measures are implemented 
to mitigate exposure. Currently, no risk has been identified that tltreatens the Company's existence or 
operations in the agro-input business. 

The Internal Audit function collaborates with departmental heads to evaluate key risks and assess the 
effectiveness of control mechanisms. RecolllUlendations are placed before the Audit Committee for 
appropriate action. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Mis S.K. Agrawal and Co. Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN: 306033E/E300272) continue as the 
Company's Statutory Auditors until the conclusion of tbe 79th AGM to be held in 2027. The Auditor's 
Repmt is self-explanatory and does not contain any qualifications. 

COST AUDIT 

As maodated under Section 148( I) of the Companies Act, 2013. you,· Company has appointed Mis S. Gupta 
& Co., Cost Accountants (FRN: 000020) as Cost Auditors for FY 2025-26, subject to ratification of their 
remuneration at the ensuing AGM. 

In addition, the Department of Fertilisers has directed the Company to undertake a special audit of cost data 
fo,· FY 2024-25 under the NBS policy to assess MRP reasonableness. This audit will also be conducted by 
Mis S. Gupta & Co. 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

Mis Batliboi Purohit & Darbari, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 303086E). continue to serve as Internal 
Auditors for FY 2025-26. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board bas reappointed CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal, 
Proprietor of Mis Agarwal A & Associates (CP No. 13493, FCS-7604) as the Secretarial Auditor for FY 
2025-26. The Secretarial Audit Report for FY 2024-25 is in Form MR-3 annexed as Annexure Al & 
AnnexureA2 

The Company bas complied with Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) relating to Board and General 
Meetings. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

A detailed overview of the Company's operations, industry structure, market outlook, opportunities, risks, 
and internal controls is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, attached as 
Annexure B, which forms an integral part of this Report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The composition of your Company's Board reflects a healthy mix of executive and non-executive directors, 
including a woman independent director. Non-executive directors constitute a majority of the Board. 
During the year, Sbrl DIUp Pratapslngh Goculdas (DIN: 00367409) completed his second consecutive 
five-year term as an Independent Director and stepped down at the conclusion of the AGM held on 25th 
September 2025. The Board records its deep appreciation for his invaluable contributions and guidance 
during his tenure. 

To fill the vacancy and strengthen the Board, Shri Gautam Bhattacharya was appointed as an Additional 
Director (Non-Executive, Independent) on 14th November 2024, subject to shareholders' approval at the 
ensuing AGM. 

Further, Smt. SonaU Sen (DIN: 004S1839), who continues to serve as an Independent Director, is being 
recommended for re-appointment for another five-year term. Detailed profiles of both directors and their 
qualifications are included in the AGM Notice. 

Board Composition (as on 31st March 202S): 
• Shri Binod Khaitan (DIN: 00128502)- Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
• Shri Hemant Bangur (DIN: 00040903)- Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
• Smt. Sonali Sen (DIN: 00451839)- Non-Executive, Independent, Woman Director
• Shri Gautam Bhattacharya (DIN: 10834784)- Non-Executive, Independent Director
• Shri Ajay Bangur (DIN: 0004 I 711) - Executive Director & CEO

Following the induction of Shri Bhattacharya and retirement of Shri Goculdas, Board committees were 
reconstituted accordingly. 

RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION 

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company's Articles of Association, 
Sbrl Blood Kumar Kbaltan (DIN: 00128502) retires by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being 
eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 
Considering his experience and contributions, the Board recommends his re-appointment. His brief profile 
is disclosed in the AGM Notice. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS'DECLARATION 

The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors confirming their independence as 
per the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 16(l)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 
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The Board affirms that there has been no change in the circumstances affecting their independence. 
Furthermore, the names of all Independent Directors are registered in the databank maintained by the Indian 
Institute of Co1i,orate Affairs. 

BOARD MEETINGS 

During FY 2024-25, the Board met five times on the following dates: 
• 29th May 2024
• 12th August 2024
• 9th November 2024
• 14th November 2024
• 4th February 2025

The interval between meetings was within the limits prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
Regulations. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBJLlTY STATEMENT 

In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act. 2013. the Directors confirm that: 
a) The applicable accounting standards have been followed.
b) Judgments and estimates used are reasonable and prudent.
c) Adequate accounting records have been maintained to safeguard assets and detect fraud.
d) Annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
e) Proper internal financial controls are in place and functioning effectively.
I) Compliance systems for applicable laws are adequate and operating efTectively.

BOARD INDUCTION AND FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES 

Independent Directors are provided with comprehensive induction materials at the time of appointment, 
including Company profile, Board structure, regulatory responsibilities, and expected roles. 

Throughout the year, directors are regularly updated through presentations on business pe1fonnance, key 
financials, indusb)' trends_, and relevant regulatot)' changes to enable effective governance and oversight. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

In compliance with Section 178( I) of the Act, the Company has adopted a policy on appointment and 
remuneration of Directors, KMPs, and senior management. It outlines: 

• Board composition and selection criteria
• Remuneration structure for different roles
• Attributes of independence and professional integrity
• Appointment tern1s and succession plannfag

The policy, based on recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, is attached as 
Annexure C. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

I. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

• Chairperson: Smt. Sonali Sen
• Members: Shri Hemant Bangur and Shri Gautam Bhattacharya
• Meeting Held: 12tb August 2024
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2. Audit Committee
• Chairperson: Smt Sonali Sen
• Members: Shri Gautam Bhattacharya and Shri Ajay Bangur
• Meetings Held: 29th May, 12th August, 14th November 2024, 3 !st January, and 4th February 2025
• All recommendations of the Committee were accepted by the Board.

3. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
• Chairperson: Shri Binod Khaitan
• Members: Shri Hemant Bangur and Shri Ajay Bangur
• Meeting Held: 4th February 2025

4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
• Chairperson: Shri Binod Khaitan
• Members: Shri Hemant Bangur and Shri Gautam Bhattacharya
• Meeting Held: 12th August 2024

BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013, a formal evaluation of the Board, its 
committees, and individual directors was carried out. 

Independent Directors were evaluated by the entire Board, while Non-Independent Directors and the Board 
as a whole were evaluated by the Independent Directors. The process covered aspects such as Board diversity, 
performance, effectiveness, strategic inputs, and governance standards. The results indicated a high level of 
engagement and satisfaction. 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) 

The following officials served as KMPs during the year: 
• Sbri Ajay Bangur- Executive Director & CEO (DIN: 00041711)
• Sbri Nanda Klshore Kabra - Chief Financial Officer
• Sbri Sbankar Banerjee - Dy. Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES 

The Company has no subsidiaries, associate companies, or joint ventures during the financial year 2024-25. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Since there are no subsidiary or associate companies, preparation of consolidated financial statements is not 
applicable. 

LISTING OF SHARES 

The Equity Shares of your Company continue to be listed on: 
• BSE Limited (Scrip Code: 542123)
• Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (Scrip Code: 2603 I)

SHARE CAPITAL & RECONCILIATION 
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during the year under review. 

The Equity Share Capital of the Company is Rs.3,60,74,800 divided into 36,07,480 Equity Shares of 
Rs.10/- each as on the close of the FY 2024-25. 
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As stipulated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Reconciliation of Share Capital 
Audit is carried out every qua,ter. The Repo,t is placed before the Board of Directors and submitted to 
the Stock Exchanges. 

DEMATERIALISA TION OF SHARES 

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fomth Amendment) Regulations, 
2018, effoctivc from 1st April 2019, transfers of securities in physical form arc no longer permitted. All 
transfers must be in dematerialised fo1·n1. 

The Company's shares arc available for dematerialisation with both major depositories in India: 
• ISi : INE398C0I0l6
• Depositories: National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services

(India) Limited (CDSL)

As on 31st March 2025, approximately 95.44% of the total equity share capital stands dematerialised. 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company's Code o
f 

Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, originally adopted in 2015, continues 
to be in force. It prohibits directors and employees from trading in the Company's securities while in 
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information. 

The Company also maintains a tamper-proof structured digital database with audit trail to record all 
communications of such sensitive infonnation shared for legitimate purposes, in compliance with SEBI's 
requirements. 

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 

There was no unclaimed or unpaid dividend or other amounts due for transfer to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund during the year under review, in accordance with Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY 

Your Company maintains a robust internal control framework that aligns with the scale and complexity of 
its operations. The Internal Auditor, who reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, monitors 
the implementation and effectiveness of controls across all functional areas. 
Significant audit observations and corrective action plans are ,·eviewed pe,·iodically by the Audit Committee, 
ensuring continuous improvement and ,isk mitigation. 

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 

During the financial year, tbe Company has not entered into any transaction involving loans, guanmtees 
or investments requiring disclosure under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All t,·ansactions with ,·elated parties were conducted on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course 
of business. Accordingly, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. 
Further, there were no material rclatrd party transactions that could potentially have a conflict with the 
interests of the Company. Disclosures as required under Indian Accounting Standards are presented in the 
Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The Company's Policy on Related Party Transactions is available on its website: 

https://www.phosphate.co. in/financial -investors.html 
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all Directors, senior management, and 
employees. The Code is based on principles of corporate governance, ethical business conduct, legal 
compllllnce, and commitment to the Company's values. 

It covers areas such as sustainable development, workplace ethics, occupational safety, transparency, gender 
sensitivity, and leadership by example. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

In compliance with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return in Form MGT-7 for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2025 is available on the Company's website: 

https://www.phosphate.eo.in/investors.html 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has implemented a Vigil Mechanism to encourage directors and employees to report genuine 
concerns regarding unethical behaviour, financial irregularities, or misconduct. The mechanism ensures 
coofideodallty, anonymity, and ooo-retalladoo. 

The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the Company's website and is periodically reviewed by the Audit 
Committee. 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the financial year 2024-25. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between 
the end of the financial year and the date of this Report. 

SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS 

There have been no significant or material orders passed by any regulator, tribunal or court during the year 
that could impact the going concern status or future operations of the Company. 

PROCEEDINGS UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

There were no proceedings that were filed by the Company or against the Company, which are pending under 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended, before National Company Law Tribunal or other 
Courts. 

CREDIT RATING 

The Company's creditworthiness was reaffirmed by Acuite Ratings & Research Limited, which assigned: 
• BBB-/ Stable for fund-based working capital and term loan facilities
• A3+ for non-fund-based working capital facilities

INSURANCE 

All tangible assets and major properties of the Company are adequately insured against fire, theft, and other 
risks. 
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ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE & 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Energy Conservation: 
Steps taken towards energy conservation are enumerated below. 
a. Maintaining the overall power factor above 0.95 using capacitor bank;
b. Phase-wise changing high watt Mercury/SON lamp to less energy consuming LED lamps has

reduced the lighting load.

Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy: 
The Company is exploring application of solar power energy instead of normal conventional power in 
some areas of the production process and facto,y lightings. 

Technology Absorption: 
The Company continues to adopt contemporary manufacturing technologies to ensure product quality 
and efficiency. 

Foreign Exchange: 

Partkulars 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 

Foreign Exchange Outgo: 

- Purchase of Raw Malerials

- Others

2024-25 

Nil 

2023-24 

Nil 

₹60,14,69,863  ₹48,74,73.886

Nil Nil 

Particulars of Employees 

Disclosures pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act.2013 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in Anncxurc F to this Repmt. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

In terms of Regulation 15 of the SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015, 
your Company is exempted from compliance with cenain provisions relating to corporate governance. 

However. applicable pa,ts of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations have been included in 
Annexure D fonning part of this Repo,t. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

As part of its commitmeot to inclusive growth, the Company unde,took CSR activities dui·ing the yea,· 
amounting to ₹ 13.00 lakb� which was contributed to Human Developmenl Centre towards tbe purchase 
of land for the upcoming Joynagar Eye Hospital in South 24 Parganas, West Bengal. The disclosures 
required to be given under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(1) of the Companies 
(Co,porate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure E to the Board report. 

The CSR Committee ensures alignment of social initiatives with the core values of people-centric 
development, healthcare, and education. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

The Company is committed to providing a safe and respectful work environment for all employees. No 
complaint of sexual harassment was received during the financial year 2024-25. 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS 

There were no instances of' fraud repo1ted by the Statutory Auditors to tbe Board or to the Central 
Government under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. 
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

As on 31st March 2025, the Company employed (49) permanent staff. Human capital continues to be an 
important pillar of strength for the Company. 

The Company fosters a performance-driven culture and has maintained cordial industrial relations throughout 
the year. Disclosures under Section I 97(12) are available in Annexure F. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Board places on record its gratitude for the continued support and cooperation fiom: 
• Shareholders
• Customers
• Vendors and Business Partners
• Financial Institutions and Bankers
• Rating Agencies
• Government Authorities and Regulatory Bodies
• Stock Exchanges, Depositories, Auditors, and Consultants

We also sincerely thank the Company's employees for their commitment and contributions towards the 
Company's performance and growth. 

Place: Kolkata 
Dated: 3 I" July 2025 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For The Phosphate Co. Ltd. 

(Ajay Bangur) 
Executive Director 
DIN:00041711 

(Binod Khaitan) 
Director 

DIN:00128502 

This Report contains forward-looking statements relating to the Company's future plans, objectives, 
and expected performance. These statements are based on management's current expectations and 
assumptions. Actual results may differ materially due to various external factors including market 
conditions, raw material prices, regulatory changes, and macroeconomic conditions. 

The Company assumes no obligation to publicly revise or update any such statements based on 
subsequent events or developments. 
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Annexure-AI 

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 und Rule No .  9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnelj Rules, 2014) 

To, 

The Members, 

THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 
14 NETAJJ SUBHAS ROAD, 

KOLKATA- 700 001 

\Ve havebeen appointed by the Board of Directors of The Phosphate Company Limited 

L24231WB1949PLC017664) (hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretarial Audit of the 

Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

\Ve have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adberence to good corporate practices by The Phosphate Company Limited (hereinafter called the 

Company) having its Registered Office at 14 Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata-700001, West Bengal. 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a mam1er that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statuto1y compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, fonns and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also infomiation provided by the Company, its officers, 

agents aod authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in 

our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 

Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter: 

J. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers. fonns, and returns filed and other

records maintained by The Phosphate Company Limited( the company') for the financial year ended

on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the mies made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, l 956 ( SCRA ') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent

ofForeign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;- (No

such Transactions, hence 1101 applicable totlw Company during the Audit Period) 

11 



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

(v)The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 ( SEBI Act') or by SEBI, to the extent applicable

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 ;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)

Regulations, 20 I 5;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

(I) The following Acts, over and above other laws are specifically applicable to the Company as per

the Management Representation Letter issued by the Company of even date:

(i) Fertiliser (Control) Order I 985 issued under the Essential Commodities Act, 1955 by the

Central Govenunent.

2. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 ( SEBI Act') which are not applicable to the Company during the financial
year under report :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2018;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)

Regulations, 202 I ;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations.

2008;

( d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018.

3. We bave also examined compliauce with tbe applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The Institute

of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 ( hereinafter refened to as Listing Regulations ).

4. Dming the period under review the Company bas complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above.

5. We further report that:

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the

provisions of the Act.
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(ii) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further

i_nfonnation and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at

the meeting.

(iii) All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recorded in the

minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

6. We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof. on test-check basis. the

Company has complied with the laws applicable specifically to tbe Company.

7. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with

the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, mies,

regtilations and guidelines.

We further report that, to the best of our understanding, during the year under report, no specific 

events/actions have occu1Ted having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the laws, 

regulations,guidelines,standards etc. 

We further report that during the year under report the following changes occurred: 

a. Mr. Dilip Pratapsingh Goculdas (DIN: 00367409) retired as an Independent Director of the

Company with effect from the close of the Annual General Meeting held on 25th September

2025, upon completion of his two consecutive terms of five years each, in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations ..

b. Mr. Gautam Bhattacharya (DIN: 10834784) was appointed to the Board of the Company ou 14th

November 2024 as an Additional Director (Non-Executive, Independent), pursuant to the

provisions of'the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 29th July 2025 

For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES 

Company Secretaries 

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal 

Proprietor 

C.P No.:13493

M. No. : F7604

Peer Review No. 1592/2021 

UDIN: F007604G000887450 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 
Annesure - A2 and form an interral part of this report 
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To, 

The Members, 

THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY Lll\flTED 

14 NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD, 

KOLKATA-700001 

Our repo1t of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Annexure-A2 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on Oltr audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis

to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secreta1ial records. We believe tbat the processes and

practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts

of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,

rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, stdndards

is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the ve1ification of procedures on

test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit repo1t is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management bas conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 29th July 2025 
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For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES 

Company Secretaries 

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal 

Proprietor 

C.P No.:13493 

M. No. : F7604

Peer Review No. 1592/2021 

UDIN: F007604G000887450 
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Annexure B 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION Al"ID ANALYSIS 

Cautionary Statement 
Some of the statements in the report may be forward Jooking and arc stated as required by applicable laws 
& regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which could be different from what the Directors 
en visage in terms of future performance and outlook. The Company's Perfomrnnce is dependent on several 
external factors such as perfonnance of monsoon. govenunent policy and fluctuation of prices of raw 
material and finished products and also their availability. which could adversely affect the operations of the 
Company. 

Fertliser Production & Consumption 
India - Fertiliser- Production & Consumotion trends - in lakh tons 

Production Consumntion- PoS 
FY23 FY24 

Urea 285 314 
OAP 43 43 
NPK 93 96 
SSP 56 47 

MOP - -

Nr.,te:-Consumption includes Import of Fertiliser 

Industry Review 

FY25 FY23 FY24 FY25 
306 357 358 388 
38 105 JIO 93 

113 101 117 142 
52 50 45 49 
- 16 16 22 

India is the world's second-largest consumer of fertilisers and, despite being heavily impo1t-dependent for 
raw materials� has emerged as tbe third•largest producer globally. The consumption of Complex fertilisers 
continues to increase, largely at the expense of straight fertilisers, primarily due lo labour shortages. 

During FY 2024-25. Single Super Phosphate (SSP) accounted for 16.2% of total P- 0- production. 
According to 2022 data, India ranks second in global SSP consumption, following Brazil. 

Government Policy 
The Govemment of India has introduced PM-PRANAM. an integrated nutrient management scheme to 
encourage balanced fe,tiliser use. Fun her, for Kha,·if 2025, the Government has announced a subsidy of 

7,263 per MTon the sale ofSSP fertilisers to farmers through the Point-of�Sale (PoS) system. 

Review of the Com puny 
The LAKSHMl brand continues 10 be a trusted choice among farmers. In addition, the Company has 
expanded its product po,·tfolio by launching Speciality Nutl'ient & Crop Protection Chemicals (SNPC) under 
tl1e SAMADHAN brnnd. which is being well received in the market. 

Opportunities and Risks 

Opportunities 

With its st1·ong brand equity and established distribution nerwork, the Company is well positioned to caprure 
market share in new product categories. The recently launched SAMADHAN range is expected to gain 
positive traction among fonners. 

Risks 
Tbe global fertiliser raw material supply chain remains under stress due to ongoing geopolitical conflicts. 
including the Russia-Ukr<1ine war and tensions in the Middle East (lsniel-Palestine). This could disrupt 
availability and impact costs. 

Internal Control Systems and Adequacy 
The Company maintains a robust inte111al control system, com.mensurate with the size and complexjty of its 
operations. The.se controls ensure safeguarding of assets against unauthorized use or los.s, and that all 
transactions are properly authorized, recorded, and repo11ed in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. The Internal Auditor periodically reviews these systems to ensure continued 
adequacy and effectiveness. 

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: 
The Financial Statements have been prepared as per IND-AS in confonnity with the applicable accounting 
standards with proper explanations justifying the cause of any deviation wherever occurred. The notes to 
the timmcial statements read with the auditors reports both stand-alone and consolidated give the necessary 
disclosure of all the relevant accounting treatmeots in the financial stateme.nts appended witb the Di.rector's 
Report. 
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Annexnre C 

POLICY FOR SELECTION & APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS & THEIR REMUNERATION 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the Committee) has adopted a policy which, inter alia, 
deals with the manner of selection of Board of Directors, CEO and Managing Director and their 
remuneration. 

Criteria of selection of Non-Executive Directors 

The Non-Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience so as to 
have a diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of manufacturing, marketing, finance, 
taxation, law, governance and general management. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, 
the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the degree of independence of the Directors in relation 
to the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its function and duties effectively. The Committee 
shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not disqualified for 
appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee shall consider the following 
attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for appointment as Director. 

i. Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields;
ii. Personal, Professional or business standing;
iii. Diversity of the Board.

In case of re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the 
performance evaluation of the Director and bis engagement level. 

Remuneration 

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, and 
reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and Committee meetings. A Non-Executive 
Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board and Committees attended 
by him, of such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors within the overall limits prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014; 

CEO& Managing Director - Criteria for selection / appointment 

For the purpose of selection of the CEO& MD, the Committee shall identify persons of integrity who 
possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall take 
into consideration recommendation, if any, received from any member of the Board. The Committee will 
also ensure that the prospective incumbent fulfils such other criteria with regard to age and other 
qualifications as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws. 

Remuneration for the CEO& Managing Director 

At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the CEO& Managing Director shall be paid such 
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (the Committee and the Board of 
Directors) and the CEO& Managing Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013. The remuneration shall be subject to the approval/ratification of the Members of the Company 
in General Meeting. The remuneration of the CEO& Managing Director comprises only of fixed 
component. The fixed component comprises salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities and retirement 
benefits. 

Remuneration Policy for the Senior Management Employees 

In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees (i.e. KMPs and Executive 
Committee Members) the Committee shall ensure the relationship of remuneration and performance 
benchmark is clear. The Executive Director will carry out the individual performance review based on 
the standard appraisal matrix and shall take into account the appraisal score card and other factors 
mentioned herein-above, whilst recommending the annual increment and performance incentive to the 
Committee for its review and approval. 
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Anncxurc D 

Disclosure Pursuant to Schedule V of S.EBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation 2015

A. Related Party Disclosures
Compl iancc of Accountinl! Standards:

No. In lhc Paniculars Year-end Maximum amounl 
Accounls of balance oulslanding during 

the year. 
I Holding Loans and Advance to Nil Nil 

Comoanv Subsidiarv Comoanv 
2 Subsidiary Loans and Advance to Nil Nil 

Comoanv Moldine Comoanv 
3 Holding Specified inves1men1s Nil Nil 

Comoanv 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
Managemenl discussion and analysis is presenled in Annexure B forming a part of the Board's 
Rcporl. 

B. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
Financial Statements have been prepared in consonance with the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS).

c. Disc ·losures with resoect to demat susoense account/ unclaimed susoense a ccount
1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the 

outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at Nil 
the beginning of the year 

2 number of shareholders who approached listed Nil 
entity for transfer of shares from suspense accounl 
durinu the vear; 

3 number of shareholders to whom shares were
Nil 

1ransferred from susoense account durin!! the vear· 
4 Aggregate number of shareholders and the 

outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at Nil 
the end of the vear; 

5 That the voting rights on these shares shall remain 
frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims Nil 
the shares. 
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Annexure E 

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES 

I. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. The Company is aware of its social accountabilities
and acts as a responsible corporate citizen. The policy is inclined towards sustainable
development of the society and environment and improve our living standards. The Company 
believes that assimilating social, environmental and ethical responsibilities into the governance 
of businesses ensures effectiveness and sustainability in the long run. 

2 Co mposition o f CSR C ommittee: 
Number of 

SI. No. Name of Director 
Designation / Nature meetings of CSR 

of Directorship Committee held 
during the year 

I Shri Binod Kbaitan Director 
(Non-Independent) 

2 Shri Hemani Bangor 
Director 

(Non- Independent) One meeting was 
3 Shri Gautam Bhattacharya Independent Director 

held on 
(appointed w.e.f. 14.11.2024) 12-08-2024

4 Shri Dilip Pratapsingh 
Goculdas Independent Director 
/retired w.e.f. 25-09-2024) 

3. Details of the CSR Committee can be accessed at https://www.phosphate.co.in/

4. Impact assessment of CSR projects is not applicable.

Number of 
meetings 
attended 

One 

One 

Nil 

One 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any

SI. No. l'inancial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set-off 
from preceding financial 

years ( in Rs) 

1 2022-23 Nil 

2 2023-24 Nil 

3 2024-25 Nil 

Total Nil 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

31-03-24

Particulars Rs. 

Profit Before Tax 3,18,01,141 

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 36 
Profit on redemption of mutual fund (11,64,142) 

Revaluation of Investments 1,15,390 

Adjusted Profit 3,07,52,425 

Average profit
-

18 

for the financial year, if any 
(in Rs) 

Nil 

Nil 

 ₹3,98,376

 ₹3,98,376

31-03-23 31-03-22

Rs. Rs. 

6,48,84,120 4,23,75,060 
- (55,000) 

(20,14,000) (3,79,000) 

(3,33,000) 13,000 

6,25,37, 120 4, 19,54,060 

4,50,81,202 
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7 CSR Obligation 
Particulars 

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):

(b) Surplus arising out or the CSR projects or programs or activities of the
nrevious financial vears.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any.

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).

8. Excess Amount Set-off
Particulars 

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial
vear:
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the
financial vear:
(d) Amount socnt in Administrative Overheads
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment
!f\ Total amount spent for the Financial Year !8b+8c+8d+8e)

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

9 Amount available for Set-off 
SI. No Particular 

(i) Two percent of averai:e net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
(ii) Tomi amount snent for the Financial Year
( iii) Excess amount soent for the financial vear [(ii)-(i)l

(iv) 
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 
orevious financial vears, if anv 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

I 0. Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil 

Amount (in ₹) 

9,01 ,624 

Nil 

Nil 

9,01,624 

Amount (in ₹ ) 

13,00,000 

Nil 

I 3,00,0000 

Nil 
Nil 

13,00,000 

3,98,376 

Amount (in ₹) 
9,01.624 
13,00,000 
3,98,376 

Nil 

3,98,376 

Amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial years: Nil. 

11. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No. 

J 2. Specify the reason(s), if tbc company has failed 10 spend two per cent of the average net profit 
as per subsection (5) of section 135: NA 

Place: Kolkata 
Dated:31" July 2025 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For The Phosphate Co. Ltd. 

Ajay Bangur 
Executive Director 

DIN:00041711 
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Director 

DIN:00128502 
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Annexure F 

(Pursuant to Rule 5 or The Compaules (Appolutmeut and Remuneration or Managerial Personuel) Rules, 2014) 

I. The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of all employees who were
on the payroll of the Company and the percentage increase in remuneration of the Directors during
the fi nancial vear 2024-25 are 1nven below:

Non-Executive Directors Ratio to Median Percentage Increase in 
Remuneration• 

lndeocndcnt 
i) Shri Dilip P Goculdas 0.39 0.00% 
(retired w.e.f. 25.09.2025) 

ii) Smt. Sonali Sen 0.34 -12.50%
iii) Shri Gautam Bhattacharya 0.35 N.A. 
la••ointed w.e.f. 14.11.20251 

Non lndeocndent 
i) Shri Binod Khaitan 0.24 0.00% 
ii) Shri Hemani Bane.ur 0.22 -18.18%
Whole-time Director 
il Shri Aiav Ban1mr 18.72 27.82 

Remarks: 
• Rate of Remuneralion of the direclors, other lhan whole-time director, has not changed in the current year

compared lo last year. However, remuneration lo Independent & Non-Independent Directors is based on
their allendance al meetings. Percenlage increase in remuneralion of Shri Gautam Bhallacharya is not 
comparable, hence avoided. 

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of Company Secretary is 15.15% and Chief Financial
Officer is 15.28%.

3. The percentage increase/(decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is
(7.82%).

4. The number of perrnanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31" March 2025 is 49 against
43 as on 31" March 2024.

5. The percentage increase/(decrease) in the average salaries of employees, other than managerial
personnel, in the last financial year is 20.55% as against 15. 79% in the average salary of the
managerial personnel as defined under the Act. The increment given to each individual employee is
based on the employees' potential, experience as also their performance and contribution to the
Company's progress over a period of time and also benchmarked against a comparable basket of
relevant companies in India.

6. It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees, adopted by the Company.

7. The information required under Rule 5(2) and (3) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 needs to be provided in the Annexure forming part of the
Report. In terms of the I st proviso to Section 136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being
sent to the Shareholders excluding the aforesaid Annexure. Any Shareholder interested in obtaining
the same may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

8. There was no woman in the employment of the Company during the financial year 2024-25.

Place: Kolkata 
Dated:31" July 2025 
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On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For The Phosphate Co. Ltd. 

Ajay Bangor 
Executive Director 

DIN:00041711 

Binod Kbaitan 
Director 

DIN:00128502 



Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of The Phosphate Company Limited 

Report on the audit of Ind AS financial statements 

Opinion 

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of The Phosphate Company Limited ("the Company"), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31" March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss, (statement of 
changes in equity) and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory infom,ation for the year ended on 
that date (hereinafter refen-ed to as "Ind AS financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section l33 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit 
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities.for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our repo,t. We a,·e independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute ofCha1tered Accountants of India 
(!CAI) together with the independence ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules tbereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the ctuTent period. These matters were addressed in the context of om· audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

We have detennined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that 
c.ontext.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Revenue from Sale of Goods 

The Company recognizes revenue when control of Our audit procedure includes the following: 
the goods is transferred to the customer at an 

• Considered the adequacy of the company's revenue
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for

recognition policy and its complianc-e in terms oflnd 

those goods. As described in tbe accounting policy 
AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers' 

in note 2(b) and as reflected in note 26 of the Ind • Assessed the design and tested the operating
AS financial statements, revenue from sale of effectiveness of the internal financial controls
goods is measured at fair value of the related to revenue recognition.
consideration received or receivable, net ofreturns 

• Pe.rformed sample tests of individual sales
and allowances, trade discounts and volume 

transaction and traced to sales invoices and other
rebates/ incentives. 

related documents. ln respect of the samples
selected, tested and the revenue has been recognized
in accordance with Ind AS 115.
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The Company has various incentive schemes for 
its distributors which are based on volume of sales 
achieved dur·ing tbe stipulated period. The 
estimate of sales likely to be achieved by each 
distributor requires judgment. 

Considering the judgment and estimates involved 
in revenue recognition, it is considered to be a key 
audit matter. 

• We discussed and obtained an understanding from
the management on the key assumptions applied and
inputs used in estimating provisions for discounts,
sales incentives and sales returns and compared the
same with the past trends and the provision made by
the management.

• Selected Samples of rebates and discounts during the
year, compared them with the supporting documents
and perform recalculation of those variable
considerations as per scheme documeots.

Assessed the relevant disclosure made in the Ind AS
financial statement.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in Other Section of Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board or Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that gives a true and 
fair· view of the financial position, finaocial per'fo,,nance, Cbanges in Equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
or the Aci for safoguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are r·easonable and prudent; aod design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that gives a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either· intends to liquidate the Company or to cease oper·ations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting proce-ss. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or e1Tor, and to issue an auditor's report that include.s 
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our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 we
are also responsible for expre.ssing our opinion on whether the Company bas adequate interoal
financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the approp,iateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriatene.ss of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's repo,1 to tbe related disclosures in tbe lnd AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's repo,t. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the ove,·all presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify dwing our audit. 

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the ,natters communicated with those charged with goveroance, we detennioe those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detennine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal nod Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by tbe Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
according to the information and explanations given to us and also on the basis of such checks as we
considered appropriate, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.
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II. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statements of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 
2014; 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025,
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
B'".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements (Refer Note no. 35 of the Ind AS financial statements).

u. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

m. There has been no delay in transferring the amount, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

1v. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 
entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
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Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule J J(e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

v1. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books 
of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April I, 2023. Based on our 
examination, which included test checks, the company, have used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did 
not come across any instance of audit trail. feature being tampered with. 

ForS K AGRA\\'ALAND CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.-306033E/E300272 

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia 
(Partner) 
Membership No. 068851 
UDIN: 25068851BMIDRC1641 

Place: Kolkata 
Dated: April 30,2025 
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph under the beading "Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements" of our report of even date 

In tenns of the information and explanations sought by us and given by The Phosphate Company Limited 
("the Company") and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to 
the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

I. (a) A. The Company bas maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

B. The Company does not have any intangible asset and hence reporting under clause
3(i)(a)(B) is not applicable.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verification of all the Property, Plant
and Equipment over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on Property, plant and
equipment to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

( d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

11. (a) The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at 
regular intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification is commensurate with the size of 
the Company and no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of 
inventory were noticed by the Company. 

111. 

iv 

V. 

(b) As disclosed in Note 40 of the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year
on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The company is required to file
Financial Follow-up Report I at the end of each quarter which contains profitability
statement and Financial Follow-up Report II at the end of each quarter which contains
statement of assets and liabilities. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of the financial statements, the statements filed by the Company at each
quarter end with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, or advance in nature of loan, stood guarantee, 
or provided security to any other entity. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 
3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(t) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in 
respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as 
applicable. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
under the provisions of Sections 73 to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the 
year. Hence, the provisions of Clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to 
the rules presc,ibed by the Central Governmeot for maintenance of cost record under 
section 148 (I) of the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accur-c1te or 
complete. 

According to the infonnation and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues: 

The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
Provident Fund, Employe-es State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods &Servic-e Tax, Sales 
Tax, Value Added Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Cess, and other statutory dues 
with the appropriate authorities during the year. According to the info,mation and 
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues 
were outstanding as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable. 

There are no dues of income tax, duty of customs, service tax, sales tax, duty of excise 
and value added tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on 
account of any dispute. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vii)(b) of the 
Order is 1101 applicable to the Company. 

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously uru-ecorded in 
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income 
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender. 

x. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender.

(c) The tenn loans were applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

( d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by tbe Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not raised any money from any person or entity on account of or to pay the obligations of
its subsidiary.

(I) The Company bas not raised any loans during the year by pledging securities held in their
subsidiary. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(I) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(a) The Company bas not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/
fmther public offer (including debt instrumeots) hence, tbe requirement to report on 
clause 3(x)(a) oftbe Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

XI. (a) No material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) 

(c) 

XU. 

xiii 

XIV (a) 

(b) 

xv. 

xvi (a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

According to the information and explanations given by the management, during the year,
no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of The Companies (Audit and
Auditor) Rules, 2014 with the Cen1ral Government

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions

with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the internal
audit system of the Company is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

According to information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him
as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank oflndia. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xviXc) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group does not have any CICs as part of the Group. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xvi)( d) of the Order is not applicable.
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The Company has not incun-ed cash losses during the financial year under audit and the 
immediately preceding fmancial year. 

There has been no resignation of the stan1tory auditors of the Company during the year 
and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other infom1ation accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance tbat all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

As disclosed in Note 37 of the financial statements, there arc no unspent amount which 
is required to be transfen-ed in compliance with Section 135(5) and 135(6) of the 
Companies Act, 20 I 3. 

For SK AGRA \VAL AND CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Fi1m Registration No.-306033E/E300272 

Hemani Kumar Lakhotia 
(Partner) 
Membership No. 068851 
UDIN: 2506885IBMIDRC1641 

Place: Kolkata 
Dated: April 30,2025 
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Annexure -B to the Independent Auditors' Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The Phosphate Company Limited 
("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responslblllty for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia ('ICAI'). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsiblllty 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Flnanclal Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pennit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of' Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial repo1ting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future pe1iods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
repo,ting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 3 I ,  2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidanc-e Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Repo1ting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For S K AGRA \VAL AND CO 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.-306033E/E300272 

Hemani Kumar Lakhotia 
(Partner) 
Membership No. 068851 
UDIN: 25068851BMIDRCJ641 

Place: Kolkata 
Dated: April 30,2025 
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Balance Sheet as at 31ST MARCH, 2025 

Pa.rtku.lars 

ASS�'TS 

I. Non-current assets 
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
b} Capital wor-k·i. n -pJ'(lgrC&5 
c) Financi.'11 Assets 

i) Investments 
ii} Olhers Fina_nc;ial Assets 

d) OC'ferred tax as�ts (net) 

H. Cumnt assets 
�) foventories 
b) Financial Assets 

i) lnvcstmcnls 
ii) Trade rtcdvnbk-s 
iii} Cash and cash equivalents 
iv) Other Bank Uala,-.ces
v) Lonus
vi) Other Finandal Asstts

c) Other Current Assets

Total Assets 

�QUITY ANO UA81LITIBS 

A. Equity
a) Equjty Sh.'\te UlpitaJ
b) Oth(:r Equit)' 

8. Liabilities 

I. Non<ucrtnt liabi.UHes 
a) FU\a.l)('ial Liabilities

i) Borrowing$

ii) Other 1:inancial liabilities
b) l>rovisions 

IJ. Current liabilities 
a) Fil\ilndal Liabilities 

i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables 

a) total outstandin� dues of micro 
anJ snl.all e1,te1•pl'lses; a.nd 

b) total outstanding dues of <:.-editors other

than micro and smnll cnterpri$CS 
iii) Oth�r fuuuk."ial li.lbilitfos 

b) Other current lklblUti.es
c) Pr<,visfons
d) Currc-ntTa.x lfobilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities 

M.:iteriJI Acoou1Hlng Polkies 

The �«ompJ_ny'i.ng ,,otes form ao i.nlegral parl of the Fi.naocia.l St.'tlement:s 
As per our report of even date attached. 

Notes 

3 
3 

4 
5 
6 

7 

8 

9 
10 
11 

12 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
18 
19 

20 
21 

21 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

2 

31st Ma.Kh, 2025 

6,842.18 

1,()()0.26 
$4.78 

203.42 

8,100.6'1 

2,703.70 

28.98 
730.64 

6.76 
118.80 

137.46 
823.44 

4,549.78 

12,650.42 

360,75 
8,426.28 
8,787.03 

997.12 
122.23 
33.37 

1,152.72 

993.72 
1,199.01 

13.20 

1,185.Sl 

56.88 
292.02 
58.63 

110.41 

2,710.67 

12,650.42 

As per our Jtcport of even date attached 

ForS K AGRAWAL ANO CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

)'or and on behalf of the &ard ofl>ircctor 

Firm Registration No.-306033(YE300272 

Hemant Kumar Lakhoda 
(Partner) 
Membenbip No. 068851 

Pl.ace Kol.kata. 
Dated 29th May 2024 

Ajay Bao«ur 
Executive Dii-ector 

DIN: 000417ll 

Nanda Kishore Kabra 
Cblef Fin.ant'ial {)fficer 
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SonaUSen 
Independent Dirtt:tor 

DIN : 0045183.9 

Sh.ank:ar Banerjee 
Company Secireta.ry 

Membership No. A4S073 

Amount in Rs lacs. 

31st Ma.r<.h,2024 

6,�022 

34.91 

1,()0026 
53.73 

157.42 

8,146.54 

1,725.35 

239.55 
587.73 
559.92 

114.64 

0.31 
126.21 
593.00 

3,946.71 

12,093.25 

360.75 
8.098.35 
8,459.10 

1,258.69 
113.17 

55.71 
1,427.57 

764.94 

l, 108.29 

12.10 

1,()96.19 

25.58 
186.92 
31.82 
89.03 

2,206.58 

12,09325 
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Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31..Q3.2015 
Amount in Rs lacs, 

Partkulats Notes 3'1st Mar(h, 2025 31sl Match,2024 

income 

Revenue from Operalions 26 12,736.'19 11A95.92 
Other Tncome 27 24.37 40.43 

Total income 12,76(L56 11,536.35 

II Expenses 

Cost of Materials Consumed 28 7,481.02 7,377.7$ 

l'un:hase of Trading Goods 1,422.00 681.45 

(lncf\.�5(')/0ecrcase in lnvcnlories o( finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and 
29 (149.51) 159.25 

Wurk-in-Progrcss 
£01ployec benefit expenses 30 506.81 434.89 

Other expenses 31 2,624.49 2,123.63 

Tota I expenses H,854.81 10,777.00 

Ill Profit before lnterest,De�reciation and Tax (EHIDTA) (A-0) 875.75 759.35 

Finance costs 32 300.54 342.17 
OepreciatiOJ\ and amortisaticm expense 3 226.li 22·12 

IV Profit before tax (A·B) 477.56 318,01 

V Tax expense: 
(1) Current tax 166.19 94.49 
12) Provision for Earlier Years 11.23 34.45 
(3) Mat Credit Entitlement
(4) D<,(erred lax (46.00) (13.06) 

VI Profil Cot lhe Year (IV-V) 346.14 202.13 
Vil Other Compreh,msivt Income 

Items that will not be classified to statement of Profit or Loss 

l�emeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities (16.21) (24.55) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (VI+Vll) 327.93 177.58 

Earnings per equity share

Basic & Diluted 9.60 5.60 

Cash 11.03 7.99 

Material Accounting Policies 2 

The a«oinpanyi1,g ,,otes fom, an integral patt o( the Financial Stakme,,ts 
As per our report of even date attached. 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For SK AGRA WAL ANO CO 

CHARTER•:D ACCOUNTANTS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director 

Firm Registration No.-306033E/E300272 

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia 
(Partner) 
Membenbip No, 068851 

Platt Kolkata 
Dated 29th May 2024 

AjayBangur 
Executive Director 

DIN : 00041711 

Nanda KL,horc Kabra 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Sonali Sen 
Independent Director 

DIN : 00451839 

Shankar Banerjee 
Company Secretary 

Membership No, A4S073 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March;2025 

a. Equity Share Capihtl
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each issucd

1 
subscribed and fuUy paid up

Balance as at 1 April., 2023 
Ch;inges in Equity Share Ct1pita) during the )'ear 2023-24 

Balance as .tt 31 March ,2024 
Ch;inges in Equity Share Cnpital during the )'Cilr 2024-25 
Balance as- at 31 Mardi,. 2025 

b. Other Equity

P.1tticulats
Rest'tvt and Surplus 

Sccwitics Premium Ccnc.ra1 Rcscn•c 
Bal.rnce as at 1 April, 2023 262.50 6,490.34 

Profit for the year 

A.mount Trans(erred to Gener,,l Reserve . 

Other Comprehensive Jncome

Balance as at 3·1 Marcl1,. 2024 262.50 6,490.34 

Balance as at 1 April, 2024 262.50 6,490.34 

Pi:o(il for the year 

Amount Transferred to General Reserve 

Other Comprehensive l1lCome 

Balance as at 31 March, 2025 262.50 6,490.34 

Nature and J'urpo!.e of lteserves 

Ainounl in Rs lacs. 

360.75 

360.75 

3<>0.75 

Total Other Equity 
Retained Eamin-

1,167.92 7,9'20.76 

202.13 202.13 

. 

(24.55) (24.55) 

1,345.50 6,098.34 

1,345.50 8,098.34 

3'16.H 3'16.14 

(18.21) (16.21) 

1,673.43 8,426.27 

A} Securities Premium: This reserve represents premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act,. 2013.

(8) General Reserve: This resen•e indudes transfer of f'm(it {mm retained earnings from time to time. It also includes reserve created on
fair valuation of land. The- reserve c.11, be utilised in accordarice with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(Q Retained Earnings : This reserve represents undistributed cumulative profits of the Comp.any and can be utili:ted in al-cordance 
with the provisioris of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(0) Other comprehensive Income Reserves : This reserve represents effects of remeasurements of defined benefit plans that ,-.·ill not be
reclassified to St,u·emem o( Profit & Loss.

Material J-\ocounting Policies 2

The accornpallyiog 1,otes form a.,, integral part of the Fina1\C:ial Sta�mc,,ts 

As per our report of even date attached. 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For SK AGRA WAL AND CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director 

Firm Registr-ation No.-306033E/E300272 

Hemani Kumar Lakhotia 
(Partner) 
Membership No. 068851 

Place Kolkata 
Dated 29th May 2024 

AjayBangur 
Executive Director 

DIN: 00041711 

Nanda Kisbore Kabra 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March'2025 

Particulars 

A,, Cash flow from Oper-Jti.ng ActivitJes 
Net Profit b<.'fore TJx 
Add: Adjushncnts for Nun CMh & Non Operating Items 

Interest Recei\·00 
lnterest Paid 

DepredJtion of Property pl;)iH & Equipment 
liabiht)' no longer required written back 
Prol"it on Rcdemplion of Mutual Fund 
(G1'in)/k1$S on Measuring invcshuents nt Fair Value thr<1ugh Profit (Ir kiss 
1>rofit on Sale of property.plant and equipment

(Profit)/Loss on Sale on ltwestmenl i,, Subsidiary 
Oper.lting Profit btfore Working Capital Changts 
Add: lncrtaS(' /Ot<tt,'lse in Working Capita.I. 

lncrc:isc in Current Liabilitic.s 
(Jncrease)/Decrc.ase in Non.Current/Current financial and other Assets 
lt'lcrease/(Oecrease) U\ No,,-C,u·ret'lt/Cu.ttel\l Fi.tW\CiaJ and other Liabilities 
lncrc.ise/ (Decrease) in Provision 
(lnc;:rease)/Oec:rease in Inventories 
(IJ'i.erease)/ Decrease-Trade & Other Re-cc-iv.1bles 

C1sh gcncntcd from Operation 

Less: Direct T.ix Paid ( 1ltt of refunds) 
Net Cash flow from/ (used in) operating Activities 
H. Cash A.ow from investing Activities

1>un-:hasc of Property.Plant & Equipment
Procte<ls fro1n Sa.le of Propett)1,Plant & Equipment
Interest Recei,·ed
Oives1n1ent of Subsidit1ry
Proceeds from S..1.le of Mutual Fund
Pun-:hase of Mutual Fund 

Net Cash used in lnv<.-sting Activities 
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

{Repayment of)/ Proc:ecds from Long Term Borrowings (N<.>t)
{�ept1yment of)/ Proceeds from Short Term Oorrowings (Net)
Less: lnt<-rest P.1id 

Ne.t c.-..sh used in Fi,,a,,dng Activities 
Net Changes in Cash & Cash l:quivalents (A+H+q 
Ca.sh&: Cash Equiva.lents-Opening Bala.nee 
Cash & Cash Equivalents-CJo..o;ing Ba.Janee# 

Cash and cash cquh•alents consists 
Bala,,ces with Ban.k 

Cash on Hand 
Cash and cash equivalents as at year end 

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

Amount in Rs lac.'>. 

31st March, 2025 31st March 2024 

477.56 

(14.50) 
245.1% 
97.65 

(2.62) 
(1.41) 
(1.09) 

sous 

194.83 
(235.65) 

4036 
(13.74) 

(97$.35) 
(152.85) 
(343.95) 
(156.04) 
(499.99) 

(5.90) 
2.29 

14.50 

409.59 
(195.00) 
225.48 

(261.57) 
22$.78 

(245.86) 
(278.65) 
(553.16) 
559.92 

6.76 

318.(YL 

(15.08) 
2$(>.73 

99.17 
(0.80) 

(11h!) 
1.15 

0.06 
677.60 

(875.78) 
211.n 

0.90
(26.10) 

1,317.62 
sn.95 

1,878.91 
(238.15) 

(39.35) 
0.(13 

15.08 
24,()() 

1,941.56 
(1.450.00) 

491.32 

(195.48) 
(1,(1'!4.14) 

(286.73) 
(1,576.35) 

555.73 

4.19 
559.92 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For S K AGR.\ WAL AND CO 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of tbe Board of Director 

Finn Registrarion No.-3060J3E/E300272 

Remant ·Kumar Lakbotia 
(Partner) 
Membenhip No. 068851 

Ptac.e ·Kolkata 

Dated 29th May 2024 

Ajay Bangur 
Exec.utive Director 

DlN: 00041711 

Nanda Kisbore Kabra 
Chief F1nanclal Officer 
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

Nola to Flnanclal Statements as at and for the year ended Much 31,2025 

1. Company Ove,vlew
The Phosphate Company Limited ithc, Company") is a limited company incorporated in India, having its regislered office situated
at 14, Nctaji Subhas Rood, Kollcata. The Company has its shares listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange Llmited(C5E) and BSE Limited
(BSE) . The Company is primarily engaged in manufacturing and trading of farm inputs comprising of krtiliscr, crop prol<.>ction.
sp«ialty nutrients, acids and organic compost. The manufacturing unit of the, company is located at Rishra, West Bengal.

2. Material Aocountlng Pollldes

a) Basis of Preparation
These accounts have bc<,n prepared in ocmrdanoe with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) preicribcd under Section 133 of the,
Companies Act 2013 (' Act') read with relevant Rules. These 6nandal statements are prepared in ocmrdance with histolical cost
convention on the ocaual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at £air values.

b) Revenue from Contract with Customer
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration rcccivcd or receivable, net of returns, discounts, volume rebates,.
outgoing sales truces and goods and service true. The Company recognis<,s revenue whcn the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the, Company regardless of when the payment is being made.
The spcdfic recognition criteria described below must also be mct before revenue is recognised.

Sale of Products 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services arc transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the, consideration to which the, Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the, consideration received or rc<rivable, nct of returns, discounts, volume rebates, and 
goods and service tax. The Company recognises revenue when the, amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will Row IO the Company regardless of when the, payment is being made. 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be mct before revenue is recognised. 

Contract balan<es 
Trade ..,..ivables 

A rc<rivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is 
required before payment of the consideration is due). 

Refund Liabilities 
A refund liability is the, obligation to refund some or all of the consideration rc<rived (or rc<rivable) from the, customer and is 
measured at the amount the, Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates 
of refund liabilities (and the, corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period. Refer to above 
accounting policy on variable consideration. 

Dividend income is rccognm,d when the company's right IO rc<rive dividend is established. Interest income is recognized using 
the effective interest method. All other income are rccognm,d on accrual basis 

c) Subsidy
Subsidy / Concession rc<rivable on the, Company's product are accounted whcn there is a reasonable assurance and certainity that
such subsidy will be rc<rivable and the, company will be able to comply with the requirements attached with its realisation.

d) Pioperty, Plant & Equipment

Proputy, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and aa:umulated impairment loss, if any. The cost
of Proputy, Plant &: Equipment comprises of its purchase prier, including import duties and other non-refundable truces or k,vu,s 
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the, asset IO its working condition for its intended use. lntuest and other financial
charges on loans borrowed sp«ifically for acquisition of capital assets are capitalized till the start of commttdal production.

Depredation is provided on the straight line method except for building which is provided on written down value method over the 
estimated usclu1 lives of assets and are in line with the, requirements of Part C of Schedule U of the, Companies Act, 2013. 

Advances paid towards the, acquisition of property, plant and cquipm<?nt outstanding at each balance sru,ct date is c:lassified as 
Capital Advana,s under other Non-Current Assets and the, cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under 
'Capital Won: in Progress'. 
The coot and related accumulated depredation are eliminated from the, Finand.31 Stalements upon sale or retirement of the, asset 
and the, resultant gains or losses are rccognm,d in the Stalement of Profit & Loss. The method of depredation, usdul lives and 
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriale. 
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Notes to fina.n.dal Sta.teroents as at a.nd for t.he year ended Ma.rch 31,2025 

e) Jnventories

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

Inventories are value-ti at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. C)osing stock has been valued on FIFO basis. Cost
comprises exp�nditure incurr� in the normal course of busi1,ess in bringi1,g such inventories to its location and indudcs, wh�re
applicable., appropriate overheads based on normaJ level of activity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs o( completion and the 
csti,riated costs nece:ssary to rnakc the sale. 

f) Finandal Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement 

The Company recognizes fimmdal assets <1nd financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contrnctu<11 provisions of the 
instrument. All financial assets and Jiabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which 
are initially m<'asured at transaction price. Tr,,utsaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisitio1l or issue of fina1,cial 
assets and fi.nanc;fal fo1bilities, whic:h ilre nc1t nt fair v;ilue through profit or 1,,ss, ilte itdded to the fair value on initial rocognition. 
Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. 

Subsequent measurement 

i. Non derivative financial instruments

1) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financiaJ asset is subsequently meas1.tred at arnortized cost if it is held within a busines-s model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
nows that are solely payments ol principal Jnd interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income it it is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cJsh flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms o( the
financial asSct give rise on Spl'Cified dates to <:ash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

3) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequentJy fair valued through profit or loss.

4.) Financial liabilities 

Fillancial liabilities arc subsequently carried i'lt :unortized cost using the effective i1ltere-st rne-thod, except for contingent 
consideration recognized in n business comhin<,tion which is subsequentJy measured at falt value through profit and loss. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 

ii. Derivative finan(ial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. Such derivative final\cial instruments are i11itially recognized at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss

Derecognition of financial instTumenh; 

The company dcrecognizcs a financial asset whe1l the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it 
transfers the finandill asset ilnd the ITansfer qualifies for derec,,gnition u.nd�r Ind AS ·109. A financial liability (or a pnrt of a 
financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet \•vhen the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

g) Fair Value Measurement

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value? maxi1nizing the use of relevant observable i1lputs alld ininimizi,,g the use of u1lobservable inputs. AJI l'nethods
of assessing falt value result in general approxUllation of value? and such value may never actually be realized.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
va]ue hierarchy, described as foUows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

i) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
ii) Level 2 - Valuation t('(;hniques for which the lowest level i1,put that is significant to the fair value ,neasurement is di�tl)' or
indirectly observable.

iii) Level 3 - Valuation tech1lique-s for which the lowest level input that is sig1\ificmu to th� fair value ineasureineot is
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to F1nandal Statements as at and fur the year ended March 31,2025 
h) lmpalnnent

Impairment is recogniz.ed based on the following principles:
FINndalAssets

The Company recogniz.es loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing oomponent is measured at an
amount eqWll to life time ECL For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount eqWll to the 12
month ECL, unless thtte has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at
life time ECL The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to
the amount that is required to be recogniz.ed is recogni,.ed as an impairment gain or loss in p,:olit or loss.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinile useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for 
impairmen� or more frequently ii events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested 
for impairment whenever evenlS or changes in circumstances indicate that the canying amount may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recogniz.ed for the amount by which the assets canying amount exceeds ilS recoverable amounL The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an assets fair value less c06IS of dispo6al and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairmen� asselS 
are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identiJiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash 
inRows from other asselS or groups of assets (cash- generating unit) Non- financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an 
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of reporting period. 

I) Provisions
Provisions are recogrus,,d when the Company has a present obligation (legal or oonstructive) as a result of a past even� it is
probable that an outflow of resouroes embodying eoonomic benefilS will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past evenlS, the existence of which will be
oonfirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the oontrol of the
Company or a present obligation that arises &om past evenlS where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

I) Foreign Currency Transadlons & Translations

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. These Financial Statements are p,:esented in Indian Rupee.
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Gains & losses arising on acoount of realization are acoounted for in the Stalfment of Profit & Loss. 

Monetary Assets & Liabilities in foreign currency that are oulSlanding at the year end are Iran.Slated at the year end exchange rates 
and the resultant gain/loss is acoounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

k) Cash and cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet compt:ise cash at banks and on hand and short•term deposilS with an original
maturity of three months or Jess, which are subject to an in.significant risk of changes in value.

I) Employee -
Ddined Contribution Pl.an

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities to a defined oontribution retirement
benefit plan for qWllilying employees, where the Company has no further obligations. Both the employees and the Company make
monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan eqWll to a specified percentage of the oovered employee's salary.

Ddined llffldlt Pl.an 
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, oomp,:lslng of Gratuity fund with an approved trust. The 
Company's liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the year in accordance with the 
provision of ind AS 19 - Employee BenefilS. 
The Company recogniz.es the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in ilS balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses 
through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recogniz.ed in other oomprehensi.ve income and are not 
reclassified to profil or loss in suboequent periods. 
The Company recognises the changes in the net defined benefit obligation like service ooslS oomprising current service costs, past• 
service oosts, gains and losses on curtailmenlS and non..:outine settlemenlS and net interest expense or income, as an expense in the 
Stalfment of Profit and Loss. 
Short term employee benefilS are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related services are rendered. 

Othtt long tenn employee benefits 
The Company trealS accumulated leaves expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term employee benefit for 
measurement purposes. Such long•term oompensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the 
projected unil credit method at the end of each financial year. This benefit is not funded. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately 
taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. 
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025 

m) Borrowing Cost

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

Borrowing cosls direclly altributable to the acquisilion, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended us� or SAie are capit<1li� as part of the cost of the asset All other borrowing costs an,!
expensed in the period in which U1ey occur. Bon-owing costs consist of interest and other costs U1at an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowi1tg of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange difforenc(>S to the ext(:J\t rcgardOO as an adjusttnent to the 
borrowing C()Sts. 

n) Leases

Ind AS '1'16 supersedes h,d AS 17 Leases it1cluding its appendices. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition�
measurement, presentation and disclosure of le.."lses and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet. The
Co1:npany aSS(SSCS at contract inception wheth�r a contract is, or contains, a lease. 'fhat is, if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified a.sset for a period of tin,e in exchru,ge for consider<1tion.

Company as a J�ssee 

The company applies a si1,gle recognition and measuremE-nt approach for all leases, except for short-tenn leaS('S and leases of low­
value assets. The company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use 
lhe underlying assets. 

Right-of-use assets 

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the c.onunencement date of the lease (i.e . ., the date the w,derlying nsset is available 
for use). Righl-of-use assets arc measured al cosl, less any accumulalcd depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusled for any 
remeasurement of lease liabilities . The c,�t of right-of-use assets includ� the cun,,unt of lease liabilities rec,,gnisedJ initial direct 
costs incurred., and lease payments made at or before the conuuencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets 
are depm,;iated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lc-ase term. and the esti1nated useful lives of the assets. 

ff ownership of the leased as.set transfers to the company at the end of the Je;;ise term or the cost reOects the exercise of a pu.rchase 
option, depreciation is calculated using lhe eslimated useful lite of the asset. The right-of�use assels are also subject to impairment 

Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the pre.,�nt value of lease payments to 
be made over lhe lease term. The lease payments indude fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease 
ince.,,tives receivabl.,;,, variable lease payl'nents that depend on al\ i1td.,;,x or a rate, :11,d amou1\ts expected to be paid unde.r residual 
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the 
company and payments o{ penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to 
terminate. 

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred t(l produce 
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the pJyment occurs. 

Ln calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement 
date becat1se the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease 
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for lhe lease paymenls made. In addition, the carrying amounl 
of Jease liabilities is re--measured if there is a modificatio,,, a change ii\ the lease term, a cha,,ge in the lease payments (e.g., changes 
to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such le.ase payments) or a change in the 
assessment of an option to putchase the underlying asset. 

The company's lease liabilities arc included in lnterest•bearing Joans and borrowings . 

ShorMerm leases and leases of low.value assets 

The (.-Ompany applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and eqt1ipment (i.e . ., those 
leases thal have a lease lenn of 12 monlhs or less from lhe commencement date and do not contain a purchase oplion). ll also 
applies t1,e lease of low-value assets rocogrtitiol\ exemption to leases of office equipmel\t that are considered to be low value. Lease 
payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Company as a J�ssor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer subst,mtially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are 
dassified as operaling leases. Rental income arising is accounled for on a straighl�line basis over the lease terms and is included in 
revel\ue i1\ the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred i1'l negotiati1tg a1\d arranging an 
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
income. Co1,tingent rents arc rt.'Cog-1,iscd as revenue in the period in which they ar� earned. 
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statemenls as at and for the year ended Man:h 31,2025 

o) lnrome Taxes

Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement ct Profit & Lo6s except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehemive income. Provision for current tax is made at the current tax rates
based on assessable income.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assels and 
liabilities and their carrying amounls in the Financial Statements except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial 

recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a busines.s combination and affects neither accounting nor 
taxable profit or l06S at the time ct the transaction. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realiz.ed. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax Jaws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences 
are expected to be recovered or settled The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assels and liabilities is recognized 
as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences and tax l06Ses can be utiliz.ed. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings ct subsidiaries and 
branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The 
company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to reafu.e the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

p) Eammgs per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number ct equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a righls issue, share split,
and reverse share split (consolidation ct shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

q) Recent A<:oounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendmenls to the existing standards under Companies ( Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,2025. MCA has not notified any new 
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company. 

40 



!: 

NUtd to fi.naru;i.al St11t�mi'nt; all •t <AAd fort� yi'11r ffid\'d M•n.:h JI�; 
Nolt J Prnpcrty, plu\l .i.nd ...qt.1lpnw-n1 (Cutrl'tll ¥ur; 

Offl:ript-.io>n 

Fn .. chold l11nd 
U.Uildins 
rt.t.u "'"' n�h,('.ry 

Computl'r-" 

W11t\'r & Add ll'fllt:t.ll11ti�'fl 
l,.l.."M)r,ll"'Y fiqulprnMt 
Fumilu� & r.it!itlp 
M�"k."l'Cllr.l &True4 
FJwtrlr lnq.,ll.1d,:,n 

Tot,llTanglblt Af<t�-c• 

Cap11al wotk-ln--pro� 
Tot.ll 

Note J f',�rt:,, pl•nl a.nd e.:j1,1i 1,tiW1tl (f'otl'V'iOu$ Ye:i(J 

Dc-.Kription 

fn,.'(>}l(!ld 1111'(1 
IMJding: 
l'lt1t: 1111,d 111.ldtincry 
ComputM,!, 
W�1,.,r & Add l�ttllilti�'fl 
Lab<:,r.:itt'<rJ tiqvipntent 
Furm11.1n-,&, Fitting,: 
MM�Cilt" k Truch 
l::J(,:IJi(' IJ'l,t,,111;)tk.)II 

Toul1'.:ing:lhlfl A��'f� 

('$pil$1 wotl..·itl·J'f(l� 
To)laJ 

Capi1.:i, Wont�n.Progress 
(a) Capital wOftl.•in�ress agting Sch�u1e 

lnt.angibkl AHtl$ under dcwlopmGnl 

Prqotl$ in prcgrou 

CWlP 

p 
AS.SPP 

G1u» blo,:k 

1 April 102,1 Addition, Oi:,p�•l:s/ 
Adjll$tll1ellhl 

6.2?:1,27 
3.�i'.OS 

sso.n 39.'l<I 
.. � �,. -

1tt.81 
•U,7 
15$ i).51 
1;:n '·" 

0.10 

7,617.40 <IQ.61 '·" 

34,<;1 34,;1 

i',652.31 .... H.90 

C,u,�bfQ(k 
1 April 2023 Additi<1n,. Oh,p<hal,/ 

Adjmtmtllbl 

6,295.21 
387,08 

S'.'6.41 4.31 

6.<1.1 0.99 .. , 
1(,,$1 

4.67 

..,, ..,. 
15.23 

0.10 
,.611.:W 6.58 0.52 

2.13 )2.:8 
,.,i:u, ,..,. O.!? 

31'1 M.arctl 2025 
Amount II CWW' IOI' II wioo °' 

UU�1Yl;llr I y I Toi.II 

I I 
3bt Mardi 2025 

L • y I y I ToUII 

I I 

31 ,_Wrclt 202S 1 April 202·1 

6.2!11:1.27 

:1!17,f)I! 1s2.o.i 
920.11> 527$} 

i.ilO "' 
lli.!!1 tO.SS 
07 4.06 

$.11) 5$ 

5.24 "35 

OJU 0.06 

,.....,, 717,H:I 

1,618.22 11,.11 

SI r.t.,dt 201-1 I April 20lJ 

6.296.21 
JS7,08 13"66 

S!IO.il '49.(12 
'·" 4.2» 

16,81 s.11
di , . .,
i.511 '·"'

15.23 II.IS 
O .IO 0.06 

1,61MO 6"18.49 

34.'.II 
1,6S23l 618.l') 

31'1 MllltCh 202.4 
""'°"'" In CW. to, 1 P0'1od ol 

UMth•tY- I y I 
32,781 I 

3151 Marth 2024 
T 

L • y I y I 
I I 

" 

A«tunulattd d.........,iation 

Additio!lf Oillpu�b/ )I Mal'\'.h202.5 Adjuitmt1'1J 

'""' 1&.i.� 
"'-"" 607."5 
06' - "" 

119 ,,.., 
0.16 ·l.24 
Q66 6.19 
0.9' 8.;-9 ,1.$1 

o,i; 
,Ms .. ,, ,.,., 

91.65 S.i'9 ,, ... , 

A«'llntubtc-d d�pttebtlon 
Additiom, Oillpu�b/ )I l\.hnhl02f 

Adju.llll'll'IU.l 

IS.� mm

""" 527.8) 
l.00 MS ·t:°2 
1.$7 105$ 
QIS '"' 

on 55' 

ljj) 12;;$ 
,,.as 

99.11 ... 111.18 

99.11 .... 111.18 

,_, 

34.91 

Total 

AIIWQnl in� lilts. 

Nnt,1(1(.k 

:}I M-arrh20.?S 3 l fl,htth 202t 

(,,29$,27 6.2.�21 

220.?6 = 

312.611 )�2.$9 

w U2 

4,94 623 
U..3 .... 

1.<)() W5 

0,,0 ,.., 
0Jl5 o.,i; 

6,8t2,H:I 6,':ICO.l:Z 

34.'fl 
6.,&t2:l8 6,9"35.U 

Nee bl"'-k 
JI f-1.tr<'h 201-1 )I Man:h·202) 

6,29:1.27 6.296.27 
m.o,. �,, 
352.89 ,,,.,. 

2.22 =

f,.2l RlO 
0.59 rm 

2,05 ,,., 
2.!lfi "" 
{J.05 o.,i; 

6,900.22 6,99'2.SS 

;H,91 2.U 
6,'.:ll.5.U 6,99-l..9S 

l> 
z 
z 

"' 
m 
"' 
0 

=I 

� 



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

Nota to Financial Statements .. at and for th• yu, mdod Mnch 31,2025 Amount in Rs lacs. 

Note 4 lnvHt:ment&-NonCUlftnt 
In- c.uriod at �nq-.d) 
lnvHb:nenta In Prftttenc:e Shatt 

Abhinandan Goods Pvt. Ltd. 
1,000 9'J. O,mpulsourily Rced<mable Prckr<nce Sharcs of Rs.100000/-each 
lnvestmenb in Covern.-taent or trust &ttanties 
National Savings Certificate 

Total 

Aggaeg...ht .unount ol Unquoted lnvutmmb a.t Cost 

Nott 5 Othml f inancial Assob 
Financial usots c.uriod at Amortisod Cost 
(Un>ocuttd, considttod good) 

Security deposits 

Total 

Nott 6 l)offtftd Tax -VUabililios (Not) 
Dofftftd Tax A&seb 

Expenses allowable against taxabk, income in future years 
Dofftftd Tax Uabiliti .. 

Timing diffcrcna, in depreciable....,.. 

Total 

Note 7 Invmtoriu 
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) 

Raw Materials* 
Padang Materials 
Stores & Spare Patts 
finished Goods 
Trading Goods 

Total 

• Jncladu Stock-In-Transit

Note 8 lnvHbnenta • Currmt 
lnvHt:ment canied at fair valae th.rough Profit &: Lou 

lnv-nt& in Muhlal funds (Unq-.d) 
558.2210 Units of Kotak Liquid Fund -Growth Oflion (Previous Year 570.1530) 
Nil Units Kotak Liquid fund -Growth option (Previous Year 4391.1610) 

Total 

Agg,egat• h110unt of Unqaotod lnvHtmmts at FVTPL 

42 

A.sat A.sat 
Mm:b 3J M25 Mmb 3J 2024 

1,000.00 

0.26 

t,ooo.26 

1,000.26 

54.78 

54.?8 

236.57 

(33.15) 

203.42 

1,594.33 
38.91 

116.64 
869.96 
83.86 

2,.703.70 

387.llS

28.98 

28.98 

28.98 

1,000.00 

0.26 

1,000.26 

1,000.26 

53.73 

53.13 

201.93 

(44.51) 

157.42 

768.66 
'19.79 

122.60 
80L30 

1,'725.35 

397.ti

Zl.<rl 

21253 

239.SS 

239.SS 



Notes to Financial Statements as .iit and for the year ended March 31#2025 

Note 9 Trade Receivables 

(Uo.secu.�d, cons.idered good) 

Financial Assets carried at amortised cost 

• Considered good

• Considered doubtful 

Less: Provision for 8ad Oehl 

Sundry Debtors (Net) 

Subsidy rec;eivt1ble from Cenll'AI Government 

Total 

Outstanding for the following period$ from due date of t-ran.'wl.ctions 

P�rtlc:ul11rs 

(I) Undisputed Tn1de Receivables - Considered Good

Less lhan 6 Months 

6 Months to 1 Year 

1.2 Years 

2-3 Years

More than 3 Years 

Sub Total 
(II) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in

credit risk 
More than 3 Years 

Subtotal 

(iii) Osputed Trade Receivables

More than 3 Years 

Sub Total 

Tot.ti 

Note 10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Financial Assets <anied at amortised rost 

Balance: with banks 

Fixed deposits havll,g origif,al matu.rity less than 3 Jvlolllhs 
Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 11 Other Bank Balances 

Financial Assets carried at amortised rost 

Fixed deposits having original maturity 

more than 3 months but less than 12 months (pledged) 

Total 

Note 12 Loans- CmTent 

('Unsecured, considered good) 

Finandal Assets carried at amortised cost 

A<lva11c11."S to Employct.'$ 

Total 

Note 13 Other financial Assets- Current 

(Unsecw('d, ronsidercd good) 

Financial Assets can-led at ainottised <OSI 

Jntel'e$t Receivable 

From Banks 

J\d\•a1,ce r�over.\ble in cash or kind 
Financial Assets carried at Fair Value through Profit &: Loss 

Cain/(1..oss) on fair Valuation of fiorv,rarJ Contract 

Total 
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AHi 

March 31, 2025 

477.20 
10.21 

487.41 

(l 0.21) 

477.20 

25..1.44 

730.64 

721.15 

1.33 

7.68 

0.4$ 

730.64 

0.4'< 

0.48 

m.12

0.18 

<i.5$ 

6.76 

118.80 

1'18.SO 

3.16 

131.61 

2.69 

137.46 

Al'l'lount in Rs lacs . 

..... 

March 31,2024 

431.47 

9.29 

440.76 

(9.29) 

431.47 

156.26 

587.73 

574.95 

12.30 

0.48 

5'l7.73 

0.48 

0.48 

5$8.21 

J00.02 

455.49 
4.41 

559.92 

114.64 

lH.64 

0.31 

0.31 

3.50 

118.00 

4.71 

126.21 



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 
Nola to Ym.mcial Statements u at and for the year ended Match 31,,2025 Amount in Rs Laa. 

Aaat Aaat 
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 

N<ft 14 Otbtt Current Asllds 
(Unaecured, ronaidaed good) 

Advance to suppliers 
Advanc:es agpinst expenses 

Prepaid expenses 
Subtotal 

Input tax receivable 
less: Provision for GST Receivable 

Subtotal 
Total 

N- 15 
Authorised capital 
1,00,00.000 (1,00,00,000) equity shares of 10 each 
1.S0.000 (1.S0,000) Redeemabk Pufu'""" Shares of lOOOeac:h 

luaed, subscribed and Paid-up capibl 
36,07,411() (36,01 ,480) equity shares of 10 each 
•I Reconciliation of equity ahareo OG-.iding u the begjnnmg""" at the end nf the yur. 

31 March 2025 

28.03 
2.46 
424 

34.73 
1,466.58 

671.81 

188.71 
823.44 

1.000.00 
1,500.00 

39.73 
2.02 

30.54 
= 

1,198.58 
671.ffl

520.71 
593.00 

1.000.00 
1,500.00 
2,500.00 

360.15 360.15 

31Mudt2024 
Noofahara Amount Noofshara Amount 

Equity shares at the beguuung of the year 
Add: Share is&ued/buy bacl< during the year 
Equity ob.ares at the end nf the year 

bl Righb¥)'refere�cti..., .- to equity ohareo 

36,07,<80.00 360.15 36,07,<80.00 360.15 

360.15 

The company has only one class of equity shares havmg a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per shareJn the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
.. uitv shares held bv the shareholders. 
c) o.t.oils of obueholders holding mon, than 5% aruua in the Company 

Mud,31,2025 

Madhav Trading Coq,n. Ltd. 
Shrivats Khaitan 

4�et�a...W""'-MIIM-"""-6' ...... .,,__ 

., .... No-

L !l,HMIVA'.fS .C:HIIUT"AN 

• NMATE KHNTAN (HUF) 

• ' 
• T 
• 00,00 ...., 
• --
7 !,;l'llt P"CI ... I & -

• PRAOY\.#IMtA 8ANOUR 
• .U.,�N� 

LO urrA 
ll AN� 
'2 

.. 

.. RAMESH kUMARBAHGUlt 
LS �� l'OJMI\R � 
.. K 
'7 OUR 
,. UADAH OOPAL BANG UR 
•• R 

:,0 ,......__, 
2' MILAN BANGUR 
.. 

z, VEE,.._,_,_UANGUR 

.. SURE.SH KVMl'R BAHGIJR H!..F 
.. �-
.. SU-� 
.. Klt41TAW 

,. HEMAHT OANGUlt 
,. 61MALAOEVI 

M.-O""V T�O CORPORATION LIMITED 

32 OI.O&TER LMT'EO 
,u nE OfUENTAL cOM ... AHY UMITEu 
.. RAJ PAO<WELL LIMITED 

.L 

� ......,,_ Jl>(.Al;lt:t:UMPMIVA1t:'L-..l'lt.U 

., CHINT� HOI..DINOS PVT. LTD • 

,. OE.'YENORA f'INIIEST N«l HOU)ING PV'r LTO 
.. e.tNOUA TAAFtM PVT. L '1'D. 

1_.,.,.,... 

NaofabNft: 
3,74,880.00 
2.31.000.00 

!+holding 
10.39 

6.40 

Aaat.ll•M .... Xli25 

N-.ots ........ •J�I ..a-.-
....... �--T-

,.,,_ .... 

�

..,,,, 
.. .. 
.... 

- us

"'""" .... 

...,.. uo 

$1.3» u, 

:1 
,.., 
.... 
,.u 

- .....

.. ,..,. on 

U,.206 0.75 
,.,.,. 0.7' 
"'740 0.74 ) 

...,.,. ... 

.... 

.._ Q.S7 

..,. 0. 
<,000 o.n 

o.u 
,..... o. .. ...... 
Ul00 .... 

.,,. 
MO o.m 

..., .... 
200 0.01 
- - lU.l!ij 

�
lo.30 

g 
...,, 
Ul 
,..,, 

"·"" L» .,_ 
....., UM .... 

.,, 0.$1 

... _,
, • ff.ff -·

As on 31.at March 2024 
Nn of 1bar:ea % holding 

3,74,880.00 10.39 
2.31.000.00 6.40 

A• .. :n..t .... ,d,ZOM 

N-.-'S,.._. ......... 
·-

,..,_ .... 

�
.. ., 
.... 
.... 

......,. ,.,. 
"' 1 ....... 
...,... ""' 
...... . ... 

:1 
.... 
,.,. 
u, 

...... ... .. 
o.a, 

.,.,.,. "-"' 
,. 0.7' 

.... 

..,,.,. -

.... 

,....., 0.,, 

'i 
en 
o.u 
0.>6 

:,,000 -
-

... 0.02 

..., o.o, 
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31
,.
2025 

Note: 16 Other Equity 

Securities Premium 

Opening Balance 

Addition/Deduction during the Year 

Closing Balance 

General Reserve 

Op<,ning Balance 

Addition during the Year 

Closing Balance 

Retained Earnings 

Opening Balance 

Profit for the Year 

R�measuremtf'lts of Net Defined Be1,efit Plar1 

Grand Total 

Note: 17 Borrowings (Non Current) 

Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost 

Secured 

a.Term loans from Non Banking fioandal lnstitutior,

b.GECL loans frNn Banking financial Lnstituation

Less: Current mnturities of Ter,n Loan (refer nMe 20) 

Sub total

Unsecured

From Limited Companies
From Related Patties 
From Other 

Sub total 

Total 

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

Amount in Rs lacs. 

Asat 

March 31, 2025 

262.50 

262.50 

6,490.34 

6,490.34 

1,345.51 

346.14 

(18.21) 

1,673.44 

8,426.28 

98.62 

178.38 

199.88 

77.12 

86l.00 
59.00 

920.00 

997.12 

Asat 

March 31,2024 

262.50 

262.50 

6,490.34 

6,490.34 

1,167.93 

202.13 

(24.55) 

1,345.51 

8,098.35 

183.71 

279.72 

186.74 

276.69 

923.00 
59.00 

982.00 

1,258.69 

(i) Repayment terms and nature of securities given for Secured Joan as follows :

SJ No Name of the Bank Nature of security March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 
Adit)'<I Birl.l Clpit.il Term Lo.1n is secured by p.ui passu first ch,ugc on 98.62 183.71 

Industrial Property klcateJ at holding No.47, Rislli 

a 
Bankim Ch/Indra Road, Rishra .Hooghly. Cu1Tenl 
Jnle""st ra1e is 14.85�. 

St.ill' 6.lnJ.: Of India Working Ci1pit:.,I ,·- l.o;m under CECL- 104.49 161.50 

b(i) 
lh:tcns.fon 1.0 �heme ::1.c-cun-J b)' f'ari-1\,:;:;.u 2n\.1 
chaq;'-' b.1sis on Current A.�t:s .ind entir� Fixed 
A�ts. Current Interest r.ite is 9.2St 

Canar,1 Bank V1torking C.l�lil.11 Te.rm Loan under CECL- 73.89 118.22 

b(ii) 
E:<le11slon 1.0 scheme secured b)' Pari-P<1ss.u 2nd 
Li'large hlsis on Cune,u A$.� and cruil,e Fixed 
A$$!:t$. Current IJltt'r� rtitt' is 9.25% 

45 



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March -31,2025 

Note 18 0th.et fin.andal lia.bjjjlies - Noo Cut.fiml 

f'inancial Liabilities carried at amortised co�t 

Deposit frorn Dealer 

Total 

Note 19 Provisions - Non Current 

Proviso.ns for .t!J.llployce .Benefits 
Leave Encashment 

Total 

Note 20 Borrowings - Current 

financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 

Stcured 
From Sanks 

Cash Credit 

Curr(?nt MaturiticS of Tenn Loans (refor nok 17} 

Total 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

122.23 

122.23 

92.00 

33.37 

793.84 

199.88 

993.72 

Amount in Rs lacs. 

As at 

March 31,2024 

113.17 

113.17 

87.53 

55.71 

573.20 
186.74 

764.94 

Cash Credit Loan from Banks are secu1·ed by entire stocks of i.iwentory., receivables and other curre1ll assets of the <:OLllpa11y on 
pari-passu first charge basis & co llaterally secured by second charge on Factory Land & Building. Current Interest Rate is 10.35%. 

Note 21 Trade payables 

Financial Llabllities carried at a.nlortised cost 
MSMED [ refer note (a) below) 
Others Tn1de l"nynble 

Total 

Notes: 

(a) Disclosure required under Clause 22 o( l\•1icro, Small and Ivledium

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier al the end of euch accounting year.Prindp.al amount due to micro and small
e-ntcrp-i.sc Interest due on above
(ii )the a,oount of interest paid by the buyer in terin.'I of $eCtiorl 16 of the Micro.
Small and Medium Enterprises Development A<:1, 2006 (27 of2006), along with the 
aLnount of the pa)"lnent made to the supplier beyond the appointed day dmfog each 
.J.1.'.i.' •(Hmtiug yi::ar; 
(iii) the amount of inte�t due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed cJ;:iy during the ye;:ir) but 
without odding the in1eres1 specified under 1be Micro. Snwll ond Medium
En1erpl'iSts Dtvdopm�,n Act. 2006:
(iv) lhe amount of intel\.">SI accnied and remaining unpaid at 1he end of each 
t1"1)1,11)tin g vc:ir: nnd 
(v) the ,unount of fur1he.r i.cuetest teinaining due a.nd p.iyable even in the su¢ceeding

yeans, unriJ such date when the imen..--s:1 dues nbove nre :-ic-tu:1lly paid 10 the srn:-ill 

cnlcrpri.sc for lhc purpo:-.c of disallowancc of a d�xluc-tiblc cxpcndilurc undl."r s.t.-etion 

23 ofLhc Mic.ro,Small ond Medium Entc-rpriscs Development Act,2006 
The abow disdosuri::s an:. provic.lcc.l by the Company based on tht: infonnation 
available with 1he Company in respect of the registration status of its 
\'C1ldors/supplie1'S. 

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of transactions 

Patticula.ts 
(i) MSME
Less than 1 Year 

Sub Total 

(ii) Others
Less than 1 Year

1-2 Years

2.3 Years

Sub Total 

Total 

46 

13.20 
1,185.81 

1,199.01 

13.20 

13.20 
13.20 

1,178.29 
7.51 
0.01 

1,185.81 

1,199.01 

12.H) 
1,096.19 

1,108.29 

12.10 

12.10 
12.10 

1.093.37 
0.26 
2.56 

1,096.19 

1,108.29 



Notes to Financial Statements as al and for the year ended l\farc.h 3'1,2025 

Note 22 Othc-r financi.aJ Li.abilitict • Current 
Fin.1nd.1.I Liabilitic:s c.arried at amortised cost 

Interest a..-xrued and due 
Employ1:.-e lk.-i1tfits 

Total 

Note 23 Other current liabilites 
Adva,\Ce from cuslomei:-s 
Statutor>• & other dues p3yablcs 
liability for e�pen.scs 

Tot-a! 

Note 24 Provisions. Current 
Provisons for G:mploycc Benefits 

leave En.;;ashnx-iH (reffer note No.19) 
Total 

Note 25 Cunent T,1x Liabilities (Net) 
Provbion for Income Tax ( Net of Advanct• T-'X) 

Total 

Note 26 Total Revenue from Oper.,tion 
Cross S.11t:s/lnrome from Operations 
Less: Dlsl.'ounts,Relxues &: T;\xes 
Sob tot31 
Other Operating Income 
lnsuran� Oaim 
Freight Subsidy 
ScrapSi.'lk:s 
Total 

Note: 27 Othc:.r Income 
lntert$t i1l00me (In 

Fixed 0eJ)(ls.ilS 
Olhers 

Profit on sales (If P'r(lperly, plant and e<juipment 
f(lteign E:<challge Rate Fluc-tuation 
lns1.�ranc-e Oaim Received 
Profit / (l0$S) on Sale (If hwe$tmcnt in Subsidiary 
lfobility n(l longer required written b .1ck 
Profit on Rcdempli<in of Mutual F11.nd 
Gain on me,1.Suring i.1WC$lments ,,1 FVTPL 
Other Mir,c Income 
Total 

Note 28 Cost o f  Mo1.teri.t.l Consumed 
R.-iw rvhlterfols 

Rock Ph�phate 
Sulphuric Add 
Spent Acid 

Others 
PackjJ1g Mn1eri.al:,, 
Total 

Note 29 Changes in lm1entorie.!I of Fini!ihcd Coods, 
Stock-In-Trade and Work-in-ProS"SS 

Opening Stock 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 

less: Closing Stock: 

Total 

Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 
Trading: Goods 

47 

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

27.81 
29.<f7 

56.88 

·101.39
23.47

·167:)6
292.02 

58.63 
58.63 

110.41 
110.41 

13,m.4 3 
1:'117.45 

12,659.98 

5.1.61 

??.60 

12,736,19 

11 .0.1 
3.46 
1.0'J 

�1.5 0 

2.62 
1.41 

0.25 
24,37 

6,020.(f7 
1,009.72 

26<1.SS 
ll.02

175.33
7,481.02 

24,60 
779.70 

(288.01) 
(581.94) 

(83.86) 

(149.51)

Amount in Rs laC'S, 
Asat 

March 31,2024 

2.()2 
2 3.56 

23.58 

13120 
26.78 

28.94 
186.92 

31.82 
3'1.82 

S9.03 
89.03 

-il,499.56

1,023.36
11,476.20

·19.72
11,495.92 

12.()1 
3.(f7 

13.51 

(0.06) 

0.79 
·11.64 
(1.15)

0.62 
40.43 

6,197.89 
689.36 
310.<11 
1-1.31

165.81
7,3n.78 

248.08 
715.47 

(24.60) 
(179.70) 

159.25 



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Sta«:mcnts a; at and for the year ended MaKh 31.,2025 

Note 30 'Employee benefit expenses 

S.1laries, wages and bonus

Staff welfare

Co1,ttibutiott to Provident & othet hu,ds

Total

Note -31 Other expenses 

Consumptiun of Ston:s and Spar(>$ 

Powtr and Futl Expcn:71::.s 
Rtptiir t(>:

Buildh\g 
Machinery 

Others 

rvtanufacturiilg & Suptl'\•ision Otarges 

Pllcking Ex'penses 
fre.ight, Delivery Expenses 

Selli.ng E:\:l)COSCS 
Rent 

Rates and T ;)XCS 
f't1yment to Auditors: 

Audit Fee: 

Certifkation Fee 

Legal & Professional Expenses 
Oin.-'CtOr'S f(-'CS: 

Bo;m:I Mt>eting Fees 
CouunitttX- Mttting Fees 

lnformtition & Tcchi'<•logy Expenses 

IJ\suran�c Charges 

r ... 101or Ve-hide fapenses 

Other MaintenJ1\<:t- Expe1\Ses 

Charity & DonJtio,, 

Bad Debi 

Less" Provisiol, for Bad Debt 

Provision for Doubtful Debls 
rvl.isccll�lJ\COUS EXJX'Ose5 

Tola! 

Note 32 Finance costs 

lnlerest 

l�ank dia11:,-es

Fo�ign Exchange Rate Pluctut1tion 
Other Chnrges 

Total 

48 

For the year ended 

Much 31, 2025 

401.36 

54.08 

51.37 

506.81 

108.67 

J()L.75 

60.20 

34.88 

7.68 

179.69 

101.83 

1,462.24 

38.35 

7.80 

140.24 

1.00 

0.95 

45.49 

3.00 

1.70 
1.96 

·13.87

7.48 
38.52 

14.25

0.93 

52.01 

2,624.49 

245.86 

46.48 

5.9$ 

2.22 

300.54 

Amou.nt in Rs fa<'S. 

For the year ended 

Matth 31,2024 

338.47 

50.82 

45.("1 

434.89 

89.42 

279.54 

172.lll

7.llO
22.67 

1.00 

0.90 

3.60 

1.70 

18.07 

10.68 

4.56 

2,123.63 

286.73 

54.40 

1.04 

342.17 



Notes to Finandal St-.1tements as at and for the yea.r ended March 31,2025 

Note 33 Effecth•e I.all: teconciHalion 
Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Pro€-it & Loss 
Cum.:ntTa,x 
(Excess)/Short J¼ovi1,ion for Earlier Years 
Deferred T.tx 
Total Income tax Expense recognised in the current year 

The income- tax cxpen$C com be r«ondled 
to the ruxounting: pro(it ns follows: 

Pattlcufars 

Profit before t.tx 
Applicable tax r3te 
Computed Tax Expense 
Add/(Deduct) 

·rax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable)
in c,1.lcufating taxable income
(l'::xccss)/Short Provision for Earlier Years
Tax effect of certain tcmporat)' differences measured at lower rates
Others 

Total Income Tax Expensej(Credit) 

Note 34 Earnings per equity share 

Particulars 

Profit as perSh1teme11t of Profit aJ1d Loss 
Wei_g.lueJ average ,wmber of equity sha.res 
Earnings per �hare - l�"\Si<; and Diluted 

Note 35 Contingencies and Commitments 

(to the extent not provided for) 

I) Commit1nents 

Commitment of Capital Expenditure not provided for in the ao:ounts (Estimated) 

Tow 
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March 31,2025 

166.19 
Jl.23 

(46.00) 
JJJ.42 

Millr'Ch 31,2025 
477.56 
25.17% 
1.20.00 

(7.39) 
11.23 

7.39 
131.23 

March 31,2025 
346.14 

36,07,460 
9.60 

5.00 

5.00 

Amount in Rs lacs. 
Match 31,2024 

94.49 
34.45 

(13.06) 
115.88 

Match 31,2024 
318.01 
25.17% 
80.00 

(4,63) 
34.45 

6.03 
115.85 

March 3'1,2024 
202.13 

36,07,·180 
5.60 



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED 

N°"' 36 Employ<e Be-nmt ObJJsations 
I) Dmned Contribation Pion
Contribution ro delu,ed contribution plan. recogniz,ed are charg<d off during the year as follows: Amount in Ila Laa. 
-

Employers' Contribution ro Provulent Fund 

II) Dmned -Pion

31 Mmb,20'25 31 M...t,.:imt 
30.14 Z3.'Tl

Gratuity is paxl ro employees under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 through a recognised funded scheme. The present value of obligotion is
determined based on ac:toarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional
unil of employee benefit entitlement and measures each wut separately ro build up the final obligotion.

-

(i) Amount recognisecl in thr sta.temmt of profit md to. ii u u.ndtt:: 
Current service ca,;t 
Interest coot

Actuarial loos/(gain) recognized during the year 
Amount ftCognized in the statanent ol profit and -

fu) Cb.mgn in........., v.i ... Oblig,tion 
Present value of defined benefit obliption as at the start of the year 
Current service cn;t 
Interest coot

Actuarial loos/(pin) recopuzed durinc the year 
Ber.,fitspa;d 

Pftsart nloe: of Defined 8e.nmt Obligation u a.t tbe: md ol the yeu 

fill) aw.ge in wr•.tn• of plan -
Fair value of plan assets as at the start of the year 
Return on plan assets 
Interest Income 
Actuarial loos/(gain) 
Contribution 
-.. pa;d 

F.air •� of plan U8da u at the end of the year 
Reconciliotion of _,,. .. ,ue of d<fin<d benmt obligation and the 
fair •alue of pb.n ueets 

Funded Status 
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 

Net tiability/1....t) recogniud in t..iance sb<et 
Amount� in dw atatemmt of Othtt Compftbenain Income 

Actuarial (Caln)/Loos for the year on Present value of obliption 
Actuarial (Caln)/Loos for the year on Asset 
Return on Plan Asset. Excluding lnten,st lnrome 

Unrecognised odum.al (Cain� at the end of the year 
BIUkup of Aduarial g,wy'los8< 

Actuarial (gain)/loss cm arisiJ1g &om change in demogmpluc assumption 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arisiJ1g &om c:haJ1ge in financial assumption 
Actuarial (gain)/1= on arisiJ1g &om experience adjustment 

Aaumptioao 

Y.......w AaAunptiom 
Discount rate p.a. 
Rate of increase in salary p.a. 

Dernographk AMumptions 

Gratuity AaumulateclLftft 
Funded Unfancled 

3J March 2025 :U Ma:a:h 20?4 3J Man:b 20?5 3l Mm:h 20'U

13.46 12.18 8.14 6.39 

(1.48) (2.46) 5.45 551 
0.95 5.65 

JL98 9.72 14.54 17.55 

221.59 263.69 8752 f'B.IJ1 

13.46 12.18 8.14 6.39 
14.12 1.58 5.45 551 
19.47 15.10 0.95 5.65 

(44.38) 00.96) (10.07) (19.10) 
224,21; 22:1.59 91.99 87.52 

'1:36.11 263.13 
1.2S (9.44) 

1S.61 18.28 

30.00 3450 

(44.38) Q0.96) 1.19 
23&.59 236.11 1.19 

7,611.00 26,767.00 
Z38.SO Z3S.83 91.99 8752 

Z38.58 '1:36.10 
7,610.92 26,766.73 91.99 87.52 

1.09 0.83 
18.38 14.27 
1.25 (9.44) 

18.22 :USC 

1.09 0.83 
18.38 14.27 

31 Mud,, 20'lS 31 Mud,, 7ll2t 31 Mud,, 20'lS 31 Mud,, 7ll2t 

7.131' 
1501' 

5.8Sll. 
7501' 

7.13ll. 
1501' 

S.8Sll.
150ll, 

Attrition Rate 1.001' l.OOll. l.OOll. 1.00'!\ 
Super Annuation Age 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years 
Averageexpectedfutureservice 6Years 6Years SYeam SYears 

The,e assumptions were developed by management with the assistaJlce of independent actuarial appm9ers. Discount factoos are determined dooe 
to each year� by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of 
the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management's historical experience. 
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() Sensitivity Analysis 
Significant n<;luari;il nssumptions for the de"lermination of the defi1-.e bene(il oblig,1tion are discount r.-lte, ex-peeled snlary inc;re,tSe and mortality. 
The sensitivity analysis below have determind based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting 
period, while holdin� all other assum,tions constant. The result of sensitivity analysis is �ven below: 
Sensitivity analysis for Cratuity 

Discount l�ate (-/+0 . 5,,) 
,.,Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 
S.,lary Growth(·/+ 0.5%) 
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 
Attrition Rate(-/+ 0.5%) 
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 
tvlortalit)' Rnte (·/ '*' 10%) 
%Chnn� O:imp.m.:d t(1 base due to �nsitivity 

Sl'nsitivity analysis for Accumulated lca,•c 

Discount Rate(-/+ 0.5%) 
%Chauge Compared 10 base dl1e lo sensilivity 
Salary Growth(-/+ 0.5%) 
%Ch;mg:e Cc;impared to base due to sensitivity 
Attrition �ate(-/• 0.5%) 
,,Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 
r-.fortality �ate(-/+ 10%) 
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 

As at 31 March, 2025 
lncn.-aS<' 0t.'CR'a54.' 

236 241 
-1.03'.I'. 1.m,

2,n 2.'16
1.09'.I\ -·1.031(,

23$ 239
-0.1)1 % O.(n%

23g 239 
-0.01% 0.01% 

As a.t 31 March, 2025 
Increase Decrease 

89.93 94.24 
-2.251% 2.439% 

94.20 89.94 
2.399'.� -2.236%

91.99 92.()l
-0.007% 0.0cm,

91.99 92.01 
-0.01,'.I\ 0.013% 

At; at 31 March, 2024 
lncn-a.St' Dl'cr<.'aS<' 

234 238 
-0.'!7% 1.03'.I'. 

238 234 
'1.()2% -0.96'.I'.

236 23(, 

.().01 'I(, 0.()1'.\',

236 236 

0.00% 0.00% 

As at 31 March, 2024 
Increase Oecrease 

85.48 89.75 
-2.339% 2.531% 

89.72 85.49 
2.4'!7% -2.330%
87.53 87.54

-0.005% 0.005%
87.52 87.54 

-0.0-11% 0.011% 
11te S..-n.sitivity anaJysis pn-"SCt,tt.'CI alx:ivc m<,y not bt- reprCS('lltative of the ilch1al dt,"U\ge in the defined lx•nefit ubligati(ln ns it is mtlikely th,1.t the 
change Lit the assumptions would OCl.'ur in iso1Jtio1l of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlJtcd. 

There is no change in the 1nethod of v;duation for the prior ptriod. 
Expected contribution during lhe next annual teporting period: 
Particulars 
The Company's best estimate of contribution during the next year 

Cr,'ltuity 
Rs. 2.'IO 

Allocatlon of Ptan Ass.Gt 
(Amt in Rs. lacs) 

Allocation in" o( Plan Asset 

Table Sho\o\·ing Allocation of Plan Asset at the end Measurement Period _.,... 
__ c_,

,
.•_tu
,,

i
,.,l)._
•

.,,
(f_u.

,.
n _ d_e_d

.,_
J
...,.....,,,,...--,---G

....,.
"_tu

.,.,,
ity"-'(-Fu..

,
n_d_e_d

..a
)
....,....,.,.,... 31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2025 31 March,. 2024 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Special Depo6it Scheme 
State Covernment Sec-urities 
Government of India Securities 
Corporate Bonds 
Oebt Securities 
Other 
Total 

Note 37 Corporate Social Responsibility 

2.6'1 23.90 '1.09% 10.12% 

60.02 35.96 
38.09 38.09 

121.35 122.20 
11.70 11.70 

4.79 4.23 
238.56 236.08 

0.00% 0.00% 
25.16% 
15.'!7% 
50.87% 
4.90% 
2.01% 

100.00% 

15,2.1% 
16.14% 
51.76% 
4.96% 
1.79% 

100.00'I, 

n,e dttails rtfating to Corporntc Social Responsihi1it)' (CSR) expenditure are ,,s folfows: 
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CS� committee had bee1, formed by the Company. 'lne funds are utili:1.ed on the activities which 
are Sp«'ified in &:hedule VII o( the Ai:t. The utili:talion i$ done by wny c,( c;onll'ibution towards v,,rious nc;tivilies. 

Amount in Rs (lacs) 

For the year For fhl'. year 

Partkulars 
cndt.>d ended 

March JI. 2025 Mar<'h 31, 2024 

(n) Gross amount r�uired lo be s11enl by the Com11any durin: the 9.02 9.31 
(b) Amou.nl Spent during the year 

Through Human dcvclopn'lent Centre- 13.00 9.32 
(c) Amount unspent during the year . . 

(d) Total o( ptevious )'Cat shortfall . . 

(e) Amounl Spenl excess during the year 3.98 0.01 
Total 13.00 9.32 
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Notes to FinancW StatelMfllS as at and for the yoor ended Mardt 31,2025 

Natt 38 financW instruments and oeher relattd disclos.,,.. 
L Capital Manag<mmt 
The Company's capital mana&""""'t ls driven by lrs pollcy to maintain a sound capital base to support tho continued development of its 
business. The Board of Directors socks to maJnWn a prudent baJanc:e between dlffcrentcomporents of the company's capital. 

The debt equity ratio highlights the ability of a business to repay Its debts. As at 31st March,. 2025, the ratio was 0.0951 

Partic:ulan 

llqulty Share capital 
Other llqulty 
Total Equity (A) 
Non-Current Borrowings 
Short Torm Borrowings 
Total Bonowings (Gross Dd,t} (B) 
Investments 
cash and cash llqulvalcn!S 
Other Bank Balances 
Su-(Q 
Net Debt (8-C) (0) 
Net Debt IO Equity ([YA} 

DisclosUttS on Finandal lnstrwnmts 
I) Finandal lnstrum<nts by Categocy 

As at March 31, 2025 

Particulars 

F"mancial Assets 
Investments 
Trade Rooolvabks 
cash and cash llqulvarents 
Other Bank Balanool 
Loans 
Other Financial Assets 
Total Financial Assc!S 
F"UW>CW LiabilitiH 
Borrowings 
Trade l'ayabks 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Total Financial Liabilities 
As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

F"mancial Assets 
lnvestmcnts 
Trade Rooolvabks 
cash and cash llqulvarents 
Other Bank Balanool 
Loans 
Other Financial Assets 
Total Financial Assc!S 
F"UW>CW LiabilitiH 
Borrowings 
Trade l'ayabks 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Total Financial Liabilities 

Mardi 31,2025 

Amortisod Fair Value 
Cost throug!IPL 

1,000.26 28.98 
730.64 

6.76 
118.80 

192.24 2.69 

2,0!8.'IO 31.67 

1,990.84 
1,199.01 

179.11 
3,368.96 

Amortisod Fait Value 
Cost throug!IPL 

1,000.26 
587.73 
559.92 
114.64 

0.31 
175.23 4.71 

2,Cll.09 4.71 

2,023.63 
1,10829 

138.75 
J;l70.67 
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Amount in la. lacs 
Mardi 31,2025 March 31,2024 

3(,().75 3(,()_75 
8,426.28 8,()98.lS 
8,787.00 8,459.10 

997.12 1,258.69 
99'3.n 764.94 

1,990.84 2,023.63 
1,02924 239.81 

6:76 559.92 
118.80 114.64 

1,154.80 914.37 
836.114 1,109.26 
o.0951 0.1311 

Amount in Rs. lacs 
March 31,2024 

Total Carrying Total Fair 
Value va1 ... 

1,(129.24 1,02924 
730.64 730.64 

6.76 6:76 

118.80 118.80 

194.93 194.93 

2,080.37 2,080.37 

1,990.84 1,990.84 
1,199.01 1,199.01 

181.80 181.80 
3,371.65 3,371.65 

Total Canying Total Fair 
Va!U< va1 ... 

1,000.26 1,00026 

587:73 587.73 
559.92 559.92 
114.64 114.64 

0.31 0.31 
179.94 179.94 

2.442,80 2.442,80 

2,0'23.63 2,023.63 
1,108.29 1,10829 

138.75 138.75 
3;l70.67 3,'rJ0.67 
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Not('S to 11inancial Sto1t('m('nt.s as .1t and !or the year ended M;irch 31,2025 

(Ji) Fair value hJe.rarchy 
All Financial As.c;cts & Financial Liabilite.c; arc carried at amortised cost except Current lnve.c;tmcnts and foreign Cum:ncy Future Contracts, which 
h�w(• b('('ll foir v:tlt1('(I. 

Level 1 - Quoted (adju.c;ted) market p1ices in active markets for identical a.c;sets or liabilities. 
l.evtl 2 - Va_h,1atio1t techJ1jques for whkh the lowtst level input that is signJCi('l.'IJH to the fair \•ah1e measurement is di.ret:tl)' or indirectly 
ol.J.:.;,rrvable. 
l..cvcl 3 - Valuation technique.,; for which the lowest level input that is si"tific,rnt to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

Financial A:,scts 
Current Investments 
CA?rivative financial instrumenL.ci -

Foreign Currt'flC)' Forward Contr,,1cts 

(iii) Fim,nd:il risk management objectives and polides 
Financial risk factors 

J!';air Value 
Hieratthy Level 

l.evel1 

l.ew�l 2 

31 M:arc.h, 2025 

28.98 

269 

Amount in R,;. 

31 M:11rch, 2024 

239.55 

•. 71 

The Comp.my's .1etivities expose it to a variet)' o( fin,mcial risks: (a) market risk,(b) liquidity risk & (c)credit risk which ntay ,1d\'ersely impact the fair 
\1t1h1e of its fiJ,oJ,dt1I iMtruments. 'me Compa.ny's focus ls to foresee the vnpredkt.lbilh)' of fjnMd,ll ,n,Hkets and seek to ,n.iJ,imfae potentfol adverse 
efft>cts on its financial performance. 

(A) Market risk 

tv1nrkct risk comprL.::«..� .i.nh:r("$l r<1tt· rl$k & for\'ign curn.•n<:y risk, Fin."l.ndal ill$lruultnts 3fft-c«.-<I by m,,rkd risk induJe lo:ms anJ bornJ\\'illSS in for(•igo 
currencies. 

(a) Interest rate risk 

The Comp.:1ny l..:: expoocd to ink-rtst rate rL.::k l;M;,•ct'H1..{;(> the Comp;,my borrow fund:< both nt fixed ;,md floating intcrt-S:t rotC:."$, Tht risk is managtsd by the 
ComJ)<"'lny by ni.tintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and t'lo."'lting r.tte borrowings. The Company's expos.ure to the risk of d\i"'lnb�s i.n market 
interest .rates rcl.1.tes p.rlll'-.'U'lly to the CompJ11y's long tenl'I debt oblig.1.tiol'IS with fJoMlng .interest r..1tcs. 

(b) Foreign currency ri.!lks

Foreign Cllfr('1lcy risk i.,..:: the risk tlW the fair vnlut of future ca.«h Rows of an c:.-xpusurt will fluctti.1tc:.• l;M;,-ail1..c;c of changti:< ln for(-ign txcha.ngc rt.lk.'$, The 
Company's exchange rate risk exposure is prini.1.rily Jue to trade J)<"'lyablc.s denomiMteJ in foreign currency. The Comp,tny is rcsricting its exp�ure of 
dsk 1n <:hM1gc io ex<:h.'U'lge .t'Jtes by w3y of fo.rwi\rd/futu.rc Co1,IJ'a.cts. 

Particulari 31 March, 2025 31 March,, 2024 

Foreign CurMlCY Payable (Amounl in USO) -4,64,200 11,25,SOO 

(ll) liquidity risk 
liquidil)' risk refers to the risk that the Company can.not meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidil)' risk management is to maintain 
sufftdcnt lk1u.id.il)' and ('nSure th,,t funds ,,re .ivaiJablc for use as per rt.-quircmc-nts. 

The Company has obtained fund and non.fund based working capital facilities from various banks. The Company inve!IIS its surplus funds in bank 
fi:xc:.-d Jepvsit and mutu.tl fund$, whidl Ctlffy low mi'likc:.-t rh:k. 

·11,e table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's fioaodal li"'lbilities bascJ on oontmctual uoJisoounted pa)rments 

Partitular� 

One Year or less 
B�wrowing=: 
TrJde Pay.lbles 
Otht'.r Fit.iu)Cfa) LUlbi1ik"$ 
t\forc- than Onc- Y car 
Borrowings 
Other Fina1lCial Li.lbilites 

(q Credit risk 

31 Marth, 2025 

99,1 
1,199 

57 

997 
122 

Amount in Rs. lacs 

31 MarC'h, 2024 

765 
1,108 

26 

1,259 
113 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from c:ounter·party fuilure to rep.-iy or S<.>rVk</ debt .icrording to the contr.i-c.iu.�I terms or oblig.;:itions. 
Credit ri..,;k encompasses both the direct risk of defaull and the ri.,;k of deterioration of creditworthine.,;s, 
Fhli'lncial in • .::tnmlC:."111$ thi'lt lU\' si.1bj("<:t t(> cn·dit ri$k. prindpa.11)' oonsis-t of Tradt- Rc:.-ccivnblcs, Loo.1is RCC('ivabk-s,, hwc:.-s-tuK•nt..::, Cns.h a.nd Cnsh 
EquivaJents a.nd Financial Guarantees provided by the Company. None o( the fill<t1lCiaJ instmmcnts of the Comp,1.ny re.suit in material ooncentr.ttion of 
CTedit risk. 
'l'he Company has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter parties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 'l'he 
C(11n1X1JlY manages rL,;1<$ th.rough credit npprovaL,;$ establi!-hlng credit limJL<; and oo,uiouou!-ly mon.ih)riog the creditwotthjnes$ <Jf custon)t;rs 10 which 
the comp.1.ny gr.ints credit term.-. in the norm,1.I course of business. 
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Notes to Financial Statcmcnb as at and for the year ended March 31.,2025 

Note 39 Related Party Oisclos-ures-: 

List of Related Parties: 

1. Key Management Personnel
Shri Ajay Bangor 
Shri Shank.ir Banerjee 
Shri Nanda Kishore Kabra 

2. Other Directors
Shti Siood KhaHa1\ 
Shri Memant Bangur 
Shri Dilip P Goculdos 
Shri Gauh.'1.lll 6hanarcharva 
Smt Sonali Sen 

' 

Executive Director&: CEO 
CocnpaJ\y &."Cretary & Compliance Officer
Chief financial OOicer 

Non-Executive Oitector 
Non-Executive Director 
independent Director (Upto 23.09.2024) 
lndependen1 Director (w.e.f 14.11.2024) 
Tndependent Director 

3. Entities over which Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives have !-iignificant influence with whom transaction have taken 

place du.ting the year 
Adelina Investments Pvt. Ltd. 
Atl Finance & T tade Pvt. Lld, 
Chintamani Holdings 1>vt, Ltd 
Credwyn Moldings India Pvt. Ltd. 
Kanchan Udyog Ltd. 
Mani hwest Brokers Pri.vJk Li.mite-cl 
Raj f\1('kwell Ltd 
Maxworth Industrial Services Ltd 
Noshirvan & Company Private Lid 
Wind Power Vi1\imav Pvt Ltd 
Shreyans Paperphlsl 'P\rl. Ltd. 
The Oriental Co. ltd. 

The following table summarises related-party tr;msactions included in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 & March 31
,. 

2024 and deta.iJs of outstanding balances as on Mol.rch 31,. 2025 & March 31,. 2024 

Nature ol Transactions 

Salary and Other Benefits 

Coutribution to Provid�nt Fund & 
$upen1nnuation f>oliC"t' 

Other Perquisites 

rvleeting rees 

Interest on Loan 

Loan Taken 

Loan Repaid 

Outstanding Receivable 

Outsta1lding Payable 

Key Managerial Personnel 
& Other Directors 

(2+3) 

54 

68.42 

68.65 

15.4 .2 

14.32 
22.28 

112.99 

4.70 
5.30 

Amount in Rs (lacs) 

Entities where Director
,. 

KMP and relatives have 

significant influence 
(4) 

111.76 
168.18 

450.00 
1,441.5{) 

512.00 

1,3$4.5-0 

JOO.Oil 
861.00 
923.00 

Total 

68.42 

68.65 

1H2 

14..32 
22,28 

112.99 
4.70 
5.30 

111.76 
16S.18 

450.00 
1.441.50 

512.00 
1,384.50 

100.()(J 

861.00 
923.00 
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Note40 

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 

The Company is required to file Financial Follow-up Reporu -1 at the end of each quarter which contains profitability statement and Financial Follow­

up Report -11 at each Quarter end which contains statement of assets and liabilities with State Bank of India and canara Bank. Below is the 

reconciliation of the statements filed by the Company at each quarter end with such banks and the books of accounts of the Company 

Amount in Rs. in lacs 

Amount as per Books 
Amount as 

Amount of 
Quarter Particulars of Security Provided 

of Account 
reported in the 

Difference 
statement 

Inventory 2,703.70 2,703.70 

March'25 Trade Receivables 730.64 730.64 

Trade Payables 1,199.01 1,199.01 

Inventory 2,510.00 2,510.00 . 

December'24 Trade Receivables 2,217.77 2,217.77 . 

Trade Payables 3,371.25 3,371.25 . 

Inventory 3,688.03 3,688.03 . 

September'24 Trade Receivables 1,175.21 1,175.21 

Trade Payables 3,844.20 3,844.20 

Inventory 3,685.06 3,685.06 

June'24 Trade Receivables 575.95 575.95 

Trade Payables 1,888.63 1,888.63 

Amount as per Books 
Amount a.s 

Amount of 
Quarter Particulars of Security Provided 

of Account 
reported in the 

Difference 
statement 

Inventory 1,725.35 1,725.35 . 

March'24 Trade Receivables 587.73 587.73 

Trade Payables 1,108.29 1,108.29 . 

Inventory 3,123.23 3,123.23 

December' 23 Trade Receivables 1,635.72 1,635.72 . 

Trade Payables 2,918.75 2,918.75 

Inventory 4,541.88 4,541.88 . 

September'23 Trade Receivables 1,240.07 1,240.07 . 

Trade Payables 3,719.95 3,719.95 . 

Inventory 3,587.78 3,587.78 . 

June'23 Trade Receivables 223.94 223.94 

Trade Payables 845.98 845.98 . 
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Notc-41 
Rlltio Analysis 

Ratio& 

Cutten! Ra!iO 

Debl·EqultyRatlo 

Debl Set-Ace Coverage RatlO 

Rel.Um on Equity Ratio 

lf\V'eMOl'y Tumove,- RMo 

Ttade Rec:elvables T umove, RallO 

Ttade Payables TutnO\ter RatlO 

Net Cepnat Tu,nove, RatlO 

Net Profit Rauo 

RebJtn on capnai Employed 

Re1t.1rn on ln'N!strnel'II 

Provide: tho Re:11Sons for V:wiartee: of more th11n 25% in the above ratios 

El,cm,cnts of Rlllios 

fbtio5 
C\lrff!nt Ra!iO 
Oeb!·E•uitv Rl'lliO 

Deb! 5ef'vioe COv�,age Ratio 

R$tvm of EquityA,11io 

'""' TumO\•M Rallo 
Tra<!e �EiiYatlle& Tutoover Ratio 
Tdt!le P""'llble TuMO\•l!f' R.atio 
Nel C<>•i!l!I Turnover R�iO 
N-el Profi! Rallo 

Return on Cllf:)l!M Empfoyed 

Return on lrl'l(l5'fflenl 

31st March 2025 

,... 

0.23 

0.4-4 

4.01% 

'1.62 

19.32 

8.17 

6.93 

2.72% 

8.13% 

1.20% 

N1,amor�tor 
C!.M're.nt�t� 
01:'lll r1:10trowrla 

1 ....,mngs ....,,ore 1n1en3st oe�1t1110n a,1Q 
ll)xes (Prolll Before T:ix '* Fin11nce co,1 '* 

Net Profit 11fler Tax for the: periodfyellr 
Le-e.'!1 Pn=;f;:;rer1ee Orvil!elld 
CO!II OI Good!! Sold 
Reve,f\ue lrom O�tlll.OM 
Pott:ha�9 
Revenue 1,om o-ratiOns 
N� Proril :ifler Tax tor tho "o.'lr 
._..mngs oe1ore ln18"35l .. ctelJ'""-'*n a,10 

t.,xcs (Profit Bcfof(l fox '* Fmtmcc cosl '*

n!ett:!11 income on ,....,., ,...,positS, ""' ... � 
and debentures .. D.vldend Income • 
Profit on s<118 of flv<istmeru - Profit on 
ft1ir vatrmion of invcstmenls c11nied ;,1 
, .. -�
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31&t March 2024 

1.79 

02, 

0.38 

2.41½ 

10.15 

13.14 

4.74 

6.61 

t.76½ 

7.24% 

1.35½ 

Denominator 
Curffir'II Li&bililii'!!t 
,.,. "'"

Oetlt (Borr&Mng) 

A._..�eEqu(y 
Averoqe F!riffll'!d GoOd'!I 
A.W!ttqe Ttlltle Reoeivai,:ag 
Avea:qe Tt8ide PA•,1'11:l;:;9 
Wotl

(\��I 
Re-lt!llue froM o-r:ilions 

Eqt.ily • Dt:t!t (Bonooings) 

Avet9ge=Current ll'l\'estmenl. • 
Non curront lnw:s.�rncnts .. 011¥:tr 
llt'Ui< balal'IOOS 

%Ctlllngefrom 
31st Man:h 2024 Reason for 

to31stM:lrch VarillOCo 
2025 

.. ,. 1ncre99e .-. cum:irc 
1u,�1i1� 

·5% OtG<:nJaso& WI 
Sotro-.-i-

17% OtacnJasoe .-. 
Sotro-.-i ..... 

66% tnc�.iso fl N<il 
Profit 

"" 
lncrese In Stock of 

FG 

"" 
lnc�il$& in Avg 
T r:icle Rl!Oei11ttbfes 

72% lnc�.ise" 
Pu«:h.,r.er. 

·5% tnc�.iser. 
Rm.•�n� 

55% lnc�.ise fl N<il 
Profit 

12% Increase In EBOIPA 

·1t% Decrease If\ 
inM,.,.,, inonmA 

3151 ,....,ch 2025 
Numf!rator Oonominlltof 

4.549.78 2 710.67 

U90.84 8 787.00 

875.75 1,990.84 

-14 M2�00 

9.726,W 837.13 
12.736..19 6S!U9 

9"'23.43 I 153.65 
12 736..19 1 9.11 

346. 1 4 1'7736.19 

875.75 10,777�7 

1$.07 1,251.25 

31st March 2024 
Numer111tor Ot!1t0minator 

3 946.71 2.206.58 
2 023.63 8459.10 

75.9.35 2,023.63 

202.13 8,370,3t 
8,973.28 B83.93 

11 495.92 874.75 
6 308.83 1 331.SR 

11 496.92 1 740.13 
202.13 11 "95.92 

759.35 10,482.74 

22.50 i,664A4 

..... 
::c 
m 
""D 

::c 
0 
en 
""D 
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m 
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0 
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025 

Note 42 Other Statutory Information 

(i) The Comp<1ny do not have any Benami Property. Further, there is no proceedings injtiated or pending agai.nst the Company for
holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iii) The Company hJs not trJded or invested in Ctypto cutreJ\cy or Virtual Currer'lcy during the linar'lcial year.

(iv) The Company has not <.1d,•nnced or loaned c,r investOO funds to <-my c,thcr person(s) c,r cntity(ics):
(a) OirectJy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Compnny(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) Provide a.ny guarantee, security c,r the like tC'I or on beh;ilf of the Ultimate Benefici;1ries.
(v) 1'he Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or enlily(ies), including foreign enlilies (Funding Parly) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide n.ny guarantee, security rir the like tC1 m on behnlf of the Ultimate Beneficinries.
(vi) The Company does not have any transaction which is nol recorded in the books of accounts lhat has been surrendered or

discl<:>Sed as income during the year in the t,'\X assessments under the Income Tax Act.,1961.

(vii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off lUlder section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of the Companies Act, l956.

(viii) The Company has compiled with the number of layers prescribed under clnuse(S7) of section 2 of the Act rc<1d with the 
Companies(Restric;tion on Number of Layers) Rules,2017.

(ix) There ;.u-e no event$ or transaction$ after the reporting period which is required to be disclosed under Ind AS lO.

The Company is nol a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India, 1"he Company
has no Core lnvestmenl Co1npany as part of lhe Group.

Note 4.3 A Part of Land and Building lhereon has been sold to Abhinandan Goods Pvl Lld. However, execution of conveyance Deed 
is pending for necessary compliance. 

Note 44 Balances of some parties (inducting of 'frade receivables and Trade payables) and Joans and advances are subjecl to 
recondliation/confirmations from the respective parlics. The managemcnl does nol expect any malerial differences 
affecting the fi.rumclal st•tement for the yeru-. 

Note 45 CMrespcrnding c;omparative figures for the previous year have been regrouped and readjusted wherever eonsidered 
necessary to conform to the current year presentation. 

As: per our Report or even date attached 

For S K AGRA WAL AND CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLI' 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.-306033E/E300272 

Hema.at Kumar 'l.akhotia 
(Partner) 
·Membership No. 068851

·Place Kolkata
"Dated 29th May 2024

For and on behalf or the Board or Director 

Ajay Baagur 
1£.xccutivc Director 

OlN : 00041711

Nanda Kbihorc J<abra 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Son.ali Sen 
lndcpcndcnt Director 

DIN : 00451839

Sbaakar Banerjee 
Company Secretary 

Membership No. A4S073 
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